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CORPORATE PROFILE

5 8 )

CARRY WEALTH HOLDINGS LIMITED manufactures apparel
products for internationally renowned brand names.

Headquartered in Hong Kong, Carry Wealth Holdings Limited has
been listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
since 2000.

The Group’s production facilities are spread over three continents
from China and Indonesia in Asia, El Salvador in Central America to
Lesotho in sub-Saharan Africa.

The Chinese name of the Company means “enduring prosperity”.

The Group is committed to maximizing the return of its shareholders
for their ongoing support.
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INFORMATION FOR SHAREHOLDERS
BRREH

Results Announcement Date
Interim results

23rd August, 2007 (Thursday)

Annual results

20th March, 2008 (Thursday)

Financial Calendar

Deadline for lodging share transfer documents for
final dividend entitlement and right to attend and
vote at Annual General Meeting

24th April, 2008 (Thursday) at 4:00 p.m.

Closure of register of members

25th April, 2008 (Friday) to 29th April, 2008 (Tuesday)

Annual General Meeting

29th April, 2008 (Tuesday) at 11:30 a.m.

Dividends
Interim: 3.0 Hong Kong cents per ordinary share

paid on 21st September, 2007 (Friday)

Proposed final: 5.0 Hong Kong cents per ordinary
share

payable on 8th May, 2008 (Thursday)

Shareholder Enquiries

Any matters relating to your shareholding, such as transfer
of shares, change of address, loss of share certificates, should
be addressed to the Branch Share Registrar and Transfer
Agent in Hong Kong, contact details of which are set out as
follows:

Tricor Abacus Limited

26th Floor, Tesbury Centre

28 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2980 1700

Fax: (852) 2890 9350

Carry Wealth Holdings Limited e Annual Report 2007
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Carry Wealth
Holdings Limited

EEERBRAT

Investment holding
RAER

ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE

HONG KONG
e

INDONESIA
Elfe

. FL SALVADOR

LESOTHO
KRR

MAINLAND CHINA
B A

£ E 2

Carry Wealth Limited
MHARRAF

Garment trading, marketing and
provision of management services

KRB S - miGHERERIEHE DR

PT Caterindo
Garment Industri

Manufacture of knit tops

RS EX

Charter, S.A. de C.V.

Manufacture of knit tops
HFEE EX

Shinning Century Limited
BEARAF

Manufacture of knit tops

RS EX

Heshan Carry Wealth
Garment Limited
BLEERKERAT
Manufacture and sale of knit products

EEMPEHBRE

BEZRBRAR o 2007 FE5HS
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBRE

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Results

AFEMBRE
E 3

Year ended 31st December
BZ+t-A=t-HLEE
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
—BEtF —TEAF -“TTHF —TENF —TES

= =< — =< = — =< = — = = —

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TERT TAT TAL TAL TAT

Revenues Y =5

Profit/(loss) attributable NN ey
to equity holders of BB ARK
the Company A (EE)

Assets and liabilities

1,056,861 1,211,651 1,103,815 905,248 1,021,076

48,950 68,116 65,720 (41,180) (23,792)

BERAR
As at 31st December
R+=ZHA=+—-8H
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

—EStE —ETRF —TTERF —_TETNF —TE-F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET

Total assets BEE
Total liabilities BwaE
Total equity B

Carry Wealth Holdings Limited e Annual Report 2007

604,006 591,976 506,966 487,756 539,571
(270,048)  (284,454)  (250,207) (263,400) (276,421)

333,958 307,522 256,759 224,356 263,150



TURNOVER
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBRE

2006

2005

2004

2003

HK$million 0 200
BEAT

GROSS PROFIT MARGIN
Efl=E

2005

2004

2003

% o

400

10.1%

1,210
1,104
905
1,021
L] i i L]
600 800 1,000 1,200

19.4%

14.6%

BEZERBRAR o 2007 FEHS



8

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
% E

2007 2006 Changes
—EBtE —ZTTRF iR E
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FHET
Operating results REEE
Revenues Wz 1,056,861 1,211,651 -12.8%
Gross profit EH 239,571 238,795 0.3%
Profit attributable to equity RRRERFAA
holders of the Company JE 18 5 A 48,950 68,116 -28.1%
Financial position at year end RELBZBEMRR
Properties, plant and equipment I ER NG L 152,141 108,326 40.4%
Bank balances and cash RITEFRES 109,952 94,923 15.8%
Net current assets mBEEFRE 119,224 136,016 -12.3%
Total assets BEE 604,006 591,976 2.0%
Bank borrowings RITER 106,078 93,655 13.3%
Total liabilities waE 270,048 284,454 -5.1%
Equity attributable to AARERFAA
the Company's equity holders JE1G 2 325,711 304,928 6.8%
Per share information BRER
Basic earnings per share BREAREZF
(Hong Kong cents) (L) 13.40 18.88 -29.0%
Dividends per share BRAR R
(Hong Kong cents) (7&1L) 8.0 9.0 -11.1%
Net asset value per share BREEFE
(Hong Kong cents) B 88.6 84.5 4.9%
Ratio analysis b= 5
Profitability B R K F
Gross profit margin eSS 22.7% 19.7% 3.0%
Net profit margin A |2 4.6% 5.6% -1.0%
Return on the Company's KRRERTFAA
equity holders & & Bl #H 15.0% 22.3% -7.3%
Liquidity REARR
Current ratio MEN L K 1.5 1.5 -~
Gearing ratio BERBELE n/afE A 07%  n/afiEFA
Operating efficiency RE M=
Inventory turnover period (days) FEEAE (B#) 39 59 -33.9%
Trade receivable turnover (days) B RUGKIERAE (HE) 37 32 15.6%
Trade payable turnover (days) BZRNFIERAE (AE) 33 41 -19.5%

Carry Wealth Holdings Limited e Annual Report 2007




TURNOVER BY PRODUCT CATEGORIES
BRERSTAZERNE

2007

HK$1,055 million
TRETABERT

ﬁ 13.2%

[ 86.8%

Woven bottoms #4 4% # &

' Knit tops #1485 £7X

TURNOVER BY PRODUCTION BASES
BEEMSPMZERA

2007

HK$1,055 million
TRETABERT

169.2%

16.5%

7.7%

6.6%

| indonesia E1/2 [ El salvador BBE% Lesotho #Z=FE

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBRE

2000

HK$1,210 million
T-E—TEAT

ﬁ 21.6%

78.4%

2000

HK$1,210 million
T-E—TEAT
172.1%

16.6%

8.5%
0.4%

2.4%

| others Htt

Mainland China # B A[E

EEmRERAT o 2007 FEHE O 9
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ETRE®|E

On behalf of the Board, | would like to report to shareholders
the annual results of the Group for the year ended 31st
December, 2007. The year 2007 was a dynamic and
challenging year for Carry Wealth. The closing down of woven
bottoms business and related expenses incurred plus some
other exceptional items recorded during the financial year
dragged down the Group's total revenues and profit
attributable to equity holders to HK$1,056.9 million and
HK$49.0 million respectively. Earnings per share was 13.40
HK cents for the year. The Board of Directors has
recommended the payment of a final dividend of 5.0 HK
cents per ordinary share for the year ended 31st December,
2007. Subject to shareholders’ approval at the 2008 Annual
General Meeting to be held on 29th April, 2008, the final
dividend will be paid on 8th May, 2008. Together with the
interim dividend of 3.0 HK cents paid on 21st September,
2007, the total dividend for the year will be 8.0 HK cents
per ordinary share.

Globalisation will continue to fuel world trade including that
of textiles and apparels in the coming decades. For the
apparel manufacturing industry, competition has intensified
as customers become more demanding for efficiency in
delivery and product quality at lower costs. To cope with
such demands, apparel manufacturers need to have solid
production bases in developing countries which can offer
abundant skillful workforce with comparatively lower
production costs. Taking into account the keen competition
in the global market and a possible US economic recession
resulting from the sub-prime mortgage crisis, the Group will
work on enhancing the productivity of its various production
bases, particularly Indonesia, where the longest established
major production base is located. We will continue to deploy
resources to improve office infrastructure and enhance
information systems to ensure we are able to promptly
respond to customers’ needs. The Group will also keep
focusing on implementing cost control measures to enhance
its overall profit margin.

Carry Wealth Holdings Limited e Annual Report 2007
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Construction of Phase | of the Group’s new production
facilities, comprising a 10,000 sg.m. factory, an office building
and three staff quarters, in Heshan City, Guangdong Province
was completed during the year. Just set up, the Heshan
factory has yet to make a significant contribution to the
Group. There are a number of factors which may deteriorate
the business environment for the manufacturing industry in
Mainland China. They include persistent shortage of electricity
supply, intensifying inflationary pressure, appreciation of the
Renminbi and escalating production costs including energy,
raw material and labour costs. Nevertheless, the Group is
still optimistic about the long-term development of the
Mainland China market seeing continuous strong economic
growth. The Group will remain vigilant in formulating its
business development strategies for its new production base
in Heshan, which is expected to play a critical role in the
Group’s long-term development.

The Group firmly believes that a talented and hardworking
staff is its important asset and crucial to the success of its
business. Thus, it is committed to fostering a corporate culture
that emphasise continuous staff development and
improvement. The Group provides regular training courses,
subsidies for continuing education studies for outstanding
employees and organises team-building programmes for
managers so as to help them discharging their duties more
effectively.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
IRRE

AEBEMNEREBUNHEZE —H
TERE . TREECRFARATR RIGEHE
—EE— BT IR ZBE  —ERAE
RER =18 8 T8 %& - 8 LB W
B MERAERAEETREKRNE
BlehBAREFESE TASHEERLER
BHEZARX EPEERIRE BIR
BAME AREFEREERAE (B
BER - RE R B ITRAR) Bt EE it
ERTPEAELERERDER AEE
HPBEREMS 2 REEREKAZE K
LB HIE H 88 1L A EE M 2 R
RERRBESEERFFIR BRZHEER
AEBZREZERTDEERAR

AEBREEITHRYECZETIRER
EBZEE Y REBREXNDZLER
EoRE AREHNEERABTHRE
BEREREAZEEXL-RNEBRHTEH
ZIEREREDHEZBRERFEELE.
W& BRI RN BB E R R A
1% BY 1 5 58 5 RO JE 1T LA
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
IRBE

As adopting and projecting a more socially responsible
outlook is important for every industry in current business
world, heightened importance being continuously given by
the Group to the area of corporate social responsibility.
During the year, the Group continued to provide support
and donations to educational institutions and participated in
various charitable activities including blood donation, green
collection programme, used clothes recycling programme and
fund-raising sports day for children who are mentally disabled.
| am pleased to announce that Carry Wealth has been
accredited “The Caring Company Logo” by the Hong Kong
Council of Social Service in February 2008 for the second
year. To maintain a high level of corporate governance is
also one of the Group's key objectives. The Group is
committed to keeping high transparency of its business for
scrutiny by shareholders and investors. It also keeps
strengthening internal management so as to realise the
corporate goal of maximising returns for shareholders.

To conclude, 2007 was full of changes and challenges for
the Group. However, at the concerted effort of the
management and all staff, the Group was able to overcome
all difficulties. | would like to extend my heartfelt thanks to
all members of the Board for their constant support and
guidance, and to employees at all levels for their commitment
and hard work. | am also grateful to our customers, business
partners and shareholders for their trust and support to the
Group.

Rusli Hendrawan
Chairman

20th March, 2008

Carry Wealth Holdings Limited e Annual Report 2007
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

RESULTS AND BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 31st December, 2007, the Group’s
revenues amounted to HK$1,056.9 million (2006: HK$1,211.7
million) and its gross profit was HK$239.6 million (2006:
HK$238.8 million). Profit attributable to equity holders was
HK$49.0 million (2006: HK$68.1 million) and basic earnings
per share was 13.40 HK cents for the year under review
(2006: 18.88 HK cents).

Despite the satisfactory performance of its knit tops business,
the Group’s overall performance was severely affected by
related expenses incurred for the closure of the woven
bottoms business in June 2007. The close down of related
production facility in Indonesia involved severance payments
for employees and provision for impairment of plant and
machinery. The Board of Directors believes that exiting from
the under-performing woven bottoms business will benefit
the Group in the long run as the Group will be able to focus
freed resources on higher margin knit products.

Turnover of the Group decreased by 12.8% when compared
with last year. The decline was the result of cessation of the
woven bottoms business and slowdown of the US economy
in the second half of 2007. By product category, knit tops
and woven bottoms accounted for 86.8% and 13.2%
respectively of the Group’s total turnover (2006: knit tops:
78.4% and woven bottoms: 21.6%).

Gross profit of the Group for the financial year ended 31st
December, 2007 was HK$239.6 million (2006: HK$238.8
million). Gross profit margin increased from last year's 19.7%
to 22.7% for the current year, mainly attributable to the
Group's successful switch in product mix.

EEENWE D

EEREHOR

AEBEZ-_ZTT+tF+=-_A=+—H
HtFEZR=E+EBRAETABNLTES
T(ZEEXRE +2E—F—BHL+E
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T(CEEXFE: —E=FTN \BN+EE
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BLT(ZZEEXREF ATN\EHE—TESB
L) MEBFERAZERERAT A
13,408 (ZZZXF: 18.88%F1l) -

BEHE EREBRIFBE EAKE
ERRRA ST LFNARLEREH
BEGHEE ZHBRAXMZIEEY
E-FARAM N ENE 2 BB £ ERIEFTT K
ZERBREEEEME UNBERE
L#SERERES EFERSRMEE
BRAREZRBHEERS AEAKE
75  th & % B R - e R R BRI A 8
BZHBER ENAKREREER-

REB L EEEREFHAD12.8% o &
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EoORMEAEERE XEL6.8% K
132% (ZZEERNF #H EK:78.4% K%
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HE-_ZE+F+_A=1+—8B 10K
FEAEBZEMNE-_B=TALAE T
BEAET(ZEERF:_B=FN BN+
BEAL) AFEZEMNEXRANBEF
19.7% EFZE22.7% TR AR EB K
MABRERBEFTR-
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEES®R DN

During the year, the Group invested in financial instruments
mainly comprising listed shares of Mainland China enterprises
which are constituents of H-shares Index and Hang Seng
Index. Those enterprises are leaders in the energy, financial,
material and telecommunications industries in Mainland
China. However, with stock markets around the world in
turmoil in the last quarter of 2007, the Group recorded fair
value losses in respect of outstanding financial instruments
by reference to their respective market value as at the year
end.

Exercising tight control on shipment costs, the Group paid
significant less freight charges for product delivery for the
year. Selling expenses as a percentage of revenues, thus
decreased from 3.8% last year to 3.5%. Increase in
administration expenses for year 2007 was associated with
setup costs for the Group’s new factory in Mainland China
and the costs incurred by the ceased woven bottoms factory
in Indonesia.

The Group indirectly holds a 40% effective interest in
ShanDong WeiQiao HengFu Textile Limited (“SWHT"), which
manufactures knitted fabrics. SWHT reported a turnover of
HK$119.9 million and a profit of HK$5.2 million for the year
under review. The Group’s share of net profit of SWHT was
HK$2.1 million (2006: HK$4.9 million).

Indonesia

Despite the cessation of woven bottoms production in one
of the factories in Indonesia, Indonesia continued to be the
Group’s major production base in the year under review. The
factories there contributed 69.2% (2006: 72.1%) of the
Group's turnover, of which 61.3% was from knit tops and
7.9% was from woven bottoms.

Carry Wealth Holdings Limited e Annual Report 2007
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

El Salvador

During the year, the knit factory Charter, S.A. de C.V. in El
Salvador contributed 16.5% (2006: 16.6%) of the Group's
total turnover, similar to that of last year. Having received a
steady stream of orders during the year, the factory continued
to make stable contribution to the Group.

Lesotho

The output from the knit factory Shinning Century Limited
in Lesotho accounted for 7.7% (2006: 8.5%) of the Group's
total turnover for the review period. The business
environment in Lesotho faced more challenges including
customers demand for shorter lead-time in delivery.

Mainland China

The construction of Phase | of production facilities in Heshan
City, Guangdong Province was completed during the year.
The facilities included a factory, an office building and three
staff quarters. However, the severe shortage of skilled labour
in southern China has hindered development of the factory
delaying the planned production schedule. Contribution from
the new factory to the Group’s total turnover was still
relatively minimal in 2007.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

Adopting a conservative financial management system, the
Group continued to maintain a healthy and solid liquidity
position. As at 31st December, 2007, the Group’s cash and
cash equivalents and time deposits totalled at HK$110.0
million (31st December, 2006: HK$94.9 million). Working
capital represented by net current assets amounted to
HK$119.2 million (31st December, 2006: HK$136.0 million).
The Group’s current ratio was 1.5 (31st December, 2006:
1.5).

EERENWE DN

EWERS

RER MR IER R % 2 & & B Charter,
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEES®R DN

Bank borrowings, in the form of trust receipt loans, amounted
to HK$59.2 million (31st December, 2006: HK$60.6 million)
and term loan, amounted to HK$46.9 million (31st December,
2006: HK$33.1 million). The bank loans were denominated
in either HK dollars or US dollars. The gearing ratio is
calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is
calculated as total borrowings less cash and cash equivalents.
Total capital is calculated as equity plus net debt. As at 31st
December, 2007, the Group was in a net cash position.
Hence, no gearing ratio (31st December, 2006: 0.7%) is
presented.

The debt maturity profile of the Group as at 31st December,
2007 was as follows:

NERRBEREAER 2RITERA
AFABZTEEL(ZEERF T+
ﬂ ‘f’ H:XRFTE /\‘f’%/%TE) B Hf

HABANTFRBEALTEELT(ZZEE
/\i—l— H*—l——EI =F=F—1T8%
TC) cRITERABTHELLEE - EXR
E%tt?ZaJrfﬁﬁﬁ?%Lﬁ“@ﬁﬁ%L‘M
BN EHRFENBEERBESRASSE
TEIEHaJr EERBIAE S INESFE
HERZZEZLF+A=T—H K
ﬁl%ﬁfﬁé@@ﬂﬁiﬁ Hit - EXREE
tbkEmEZHR(ZEEFT+A=T
—H:0.7%) °

AEBR -_TTLF+-_A=+—RHZ
EIRIBMBA ST

At 31st At 31st

December, December,

2007 2006

R-ZZEZ2LFE RZZTTRF

+=—A=+—-8 +=ZA=+—H

(Audited) (Audited)

(BE*) (E=Z)

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTER FAT

Repayable within one year BAR—FNER 72,773 68,405
Repayable after 1 year, AR —F1%&E

but within 2 years AWM FERNER 12,916 15,550
Repayable after 2 years, AR ME&E

but within 5 years BAhFEANER 20,389 9,700

Total MET 106,078 93,655
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

For the year under review, the Group incurred a total capital
expenditure of HK$70.3 million (2006: HK$31.2 million),
which was funded using its own financial resources and bank
borrowings. HK$63.3 million was invested in the production
facilities in Heshan City, Guangdong Province and the balance
of HK$7.0 million was spent on new and replacement
machineries for other factories.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group’s sales are principally denominated in US dollars.
It has factories and offices in Hong Kong, Indonesia, El
Salvador, Lesotho and Mainland China. Operating expenses
of the Group are primarily denominated in Hong Kong dollars,
Indonesia Rupiah, Salvadoran Colones, South African Rand,
Renminbi and some in US dollars.

As the Hong Kong dollar and Salvadoran Colone are pegged
to the US dollar, the Group does not expect to be exposed
to any currency risks in the near term. The Group will closely
monitor fluctuation of other currencies and, if necessary,
will enter into forward exchange contracts to reduce
exchange risk.

CREDIT POLICY

Consistent with prevailing industry practice, the Group
switched trading terms with more customers from letters of
credit to open account basis. During the year under review,
about 36.7% (2006: 29.4%) of the Group’s business was
transacted on letters of credit, and the rest on open account
basis granted to several long-standing customers. The credit
ratings of customers are constantly reviewed and their
respective credit limits adjusted, if necessary.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEES®R DN

CHARGES ON FIXED ASSETS

The Group’s investment properties in Hong Kong with a
carrying value of HK$28.3 million (31st December, 2006:
HK$22.3 million) have been pledged to a bank to secure
trade facilities of up to HK$140.2 million (31st December,
2006: HK$140.2 million). At 31st December, 2007, the
respective secured bank loans amounted to HK$26.2 million
(31st December, 2006: HK$38.5 million).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31st December, 2007, the Group had no contingent
liabilities.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

The Group believes that employees’ commitment encouraged
by its provision of a harmonious working atmosphere is
important to the success of its business. The Group offers its
employees rewarding careers and provides them with a variety
of training programmes. It rewards employees according to
prevailing market practices and their experience and
performance. To attract and retain high calibre employees,
the Group also awards discretionary bonuses and share
options to staff.

As at 31st December, 2007, the Group had a total of 6,450
(31st December, 2006: 8,673) full-time employees in the
following regions:

Indonesia HE
Lesotho KRIE
El Salvador EB R %

China (Mainland and Hong Kong) PR (KRERES)

Total =X
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OUTLOOK

Some economists believe the US economy will continue to
slow down affected by the sub-prime mortgage crisis. They
expect housing-related jobs to fall and unemployment rate
to climb in the US, weakening consumer confidence and
spending power. Should the US fall into recession, the global
economy would be suffered.

Facing such uncertain economic conditions, the Group will
step up efforts to improve efficiency of its various production
bases and focus on expanding its product portfolio by adding
new product categories to drive a sustainable growth. The
Group will keep exploring business with new customers from
different markets including Europe and Mainland China to
ensure its customer portfolio has a diverse geographical
coverage.

To many Mainland China manufacturers, inflation fueled by
rising raw materials, energy and labour costs is a key concern.
In addition, the persistent labour shortages and tense power
supply in the Pearl River Delta region, changes in trade
policies and tax rules and appreciation of the RMB are all
unfavourable factors for manufacturers with facilities in
Mainland China. Thus, the Group expects 2008 to be
challenging year for its Heshan factory.

Although quotas on China-made textile products were lifted
at the end of December 2007, the EU and Mainland China
reached an agreement during the year putting eight
categories of Chinese textile products under a joint
monitoring system. In other words, the EU will continue to
monitor market development to ensure the transition from
the quota system to normal trading is smooth. Although the
US is also obliged to lift quotas imposed on Chinese textile
products at the end of year 2008, chances of the US
introducing protectionism measure exist and may affect
Chinese textile and apparel exports to the US market.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEES®R DN

The Group will closely monitor development of its Heshan
factory and regularly evaluate and adjust the business
strategies it has for its production base in Mainland China to
cope with potential challenges.

In a longer term, supported by sustained economic growth,
rising per capita income and blooming domestic consumption,
Mainland China will definitely continue to be a major market
for the apparel industry. Thus, the Group expects the new
production base in Heshan to become a growth engine for
the Group in the long run.

The Group expects the apparel industry environment in the
coming financial year to be extremely challenging. Apart
from ensuring cost-effective production, the Group will strive
to deliver maximum value to its customers so as to maintain
its competitiveness. The Group will continue to strengthen
its core competence by investing in product development
and streamlining production flow to meet customers’ lead
time requirement and lower product delivery costs. Exercising
vigilance and flexibility in formulating and implementing
business strategies, the Group is cautiously optimistic about
its future performance.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

DIRECTORS

Mr RUSLI Hendrawan
Chairman

Mr RUSLI Hendrawan, aged 64, is a founder and the
Chairman of the Group. Mr Rusli focuses on overall corporate
development and strategic direction of the Group and
provides leadership for the board of directors and oversees
its efficient functioning. Mr Rusli has over thirty years of
experience in the manufacture of apparel products.

Mr LEE Sheng Kuang, James
Managing Director

Mr LEE Sheng Kuang, James, aged 61, is a founder and the
Managing Director of the Group. He is responsible for all
day-to-day corporate management matters. Mr Lee is also
responsible for planning and developing the Group’s strategy.
Mr Lee has over thirty years of experience in the manufacture
and distribution of apparel products.

Mr OEY Tjie Ho
Executive Director

Mr OEY Tjie Ho, aged 56, is a founder of the Group. He is in
charge of the human resources and administration functions
of the Group. Mr Oey has extensive experience in the garment
industry.

Mr TANG Chak Lam, Charlie
Executive Director

Mr TANG Chak Lam, Charlie, aged 46, is responsible for the
overall financial operation of the Group. He is a certified
public accountant in Hong Kong. He is a fellow member of
both the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in
the United Kingdom (“ACCA"). Prior to joining the Group in
November 1999, Mr Tang was the head of finance and
accounting of a conglomerate with subsidiaries listed on the
NASDAQ in the United States and the Australian Stock
Exchange Limited and the China division of another
conglomerate listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. Mr Tang also has extensive audit experience with
one of the big four international accounting firms.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEREREEAS

Mr CHEUNG Kwok Ming
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr CHEUNG Kwok Ming, aged 46, was appointed an
independent non-executive director in April 2005. He is a
qualified solicitor in Hong Kong. Mr Cheung is currently a
partner of a Hong Kong law firm, Or, Ng & Chan and his
areas of practice include corporate finance, merger and
acquisition, banking and securities. He holds a Bachelor of
Laws degree from the University of Hong Kong.

Mr KWOK Lam Kwong, Larry, J.P.
Independent Non-Executive Director
Chairman of Remuneration Committee

Mr KWOK Lam Kwong, Larry, ,.p., aged 52, was appointed
an independent non-executive director in July 2002. He is a
practising solicitor in Hong Kong, and is currently the
Managing Partner, China of Mallesons Stephen Jaques. Mr
Kwok is also qualified to practise as a solicitor in Australia,
England and Wales and Singapore. He is also qualified as a
Chartered Accountant in England and Wales and a CPA in
Hong Kong and Australia. Mr Kwok graduated from the
University of Sydney, Australia with Bachelor’s Degrees in
Economics and Laws respectively as well as a Master’s Degree
in Laws. He is currently the Chairman of the Traffic Accident
Victims Assistance Advisory Committee and a member of
the Hospital Governing Committee of Kwai Chung Hospital/
Princess Margaret Hospital, the Insurance Claims Complaints
Panel and the Telecommunications (Competition Provisions)
Appeal Board in Hong Kong. Mr Kwok is also a member of
the Political Consultative Committee of Guangxi in the
People’s Republic of China.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr LAU Siu Ki, Kevin
Independent Non-Executive Director
Chairman of Audit Committee

Mr LAU Siu Ki, Kevin, aged 49, was appointed an
independent non-executive director in February 2002. He is
a fellow member of both the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and ACCA. He has over twenty-five years
of experience in corporate finance, financial advisory and
management, accounting and auditing and had worked for
an international accounting firm for over fifteen years. Mr
Lau is currently a financial advisory consultant running his
own management consultancy firm, Hin Yan Consultants
Limited and also a consultant to the corporate finance division
of PCP CPA Limited. Mr Lau is a Council Member of ACCA.
He has also served as a member of the Executive Committee
of the Hong Kong branch of ACCA since 1995 and was
elected as the Chairman of the Hong Kong branch of ACCA
for 2000/2001. He is currently the company secretary of two
Hong Kong listed companies and also an independent non-
executive director of several other listed companies in Hong
Kong.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr WOO Keung Fu, Danny
Sales Director

Mr WOO Keung Fu, Danny, aged 45, joined the Group in
August 2005 and is the Sales Director of the Group. He is
responsible for implementation of the sales strategies to
achieve the annual sales target and also in charge of new
product developments and formulating pricing strategies. Mr
Woo holds a Bachelor’s Degree of Science (Engineering) from
The University of Hong Kong. He has over twenty years of
experience in the manufacture of apparel products.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEREREEAS

Ms FAN Sau Yin, Gloria
Financial Controller

Ms FAN Sau Yin, Gloria, aged 42, joined the Group in May
1996 and is the Financial Controller of the Group. She is a
fellow member of ACCA and a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. She holds a Master
Degree of Professional Accounting from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. Prior to joining the Group, Ms Fan
also had audit experience with one of the big four
international accounting firms and internal audit experience
in a listed company in Hong Kong.

Mr KAM Shui Hao, Tony
General Manager — PRC Operations

Mr KAM Shui Hao, Tony, aged 50, joined the Group in May
1989 and is the General Manager of Heshan Carry Wealth
Garment Limited, a PRC wholly foreign owned enterprise
which is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.
He is responsible for all day-to-day business operation matters
for Heshan factory. Mr Kam has over twenty-seven years of
experience in the manufacture and merchandising of apparel
products.

Ms LAW Yuk Ling, Elaine
Group Human Resources Manager

Ms LAW Yuk Ling, Elaine, aged 39, is the Group Human
Resources Manager of the Group. She is accountable for
developing, planning and implementing all human resources
policies, practices and activities for the Group. Ms Law holds
a Bachelor’'s Degree of Business Administration. Prior to
joining the Group in January 2007, Ms Law was the head of
human resources in a Singaporean public-listed electronics
company. She also has over ten years of human resources
management experience with regional responsibilities in one
of the biggest international garment manufacturer.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

“Board”) is
committed to maintaining and ensuring high standards of

The board of directors of the Company (the

corporate governance as good corporate governance can
safeqguard the interests of all shareholders and enhance
corporate value. The Company continuously reviews and
improves the corporate governance practices and standards
of the Group from time to time to ensure that business
activities and decision making processes are regulated in a
proper manner.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE ON
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has complied with the code provisions set out
in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices contained in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”) throughout the year ended 31st December, 2007.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Board Composition

The Board is led by the Chairman and currently comprises
four executive directors (one of whom is the Chairman) and
three independent non-executive directors. The directors of
the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors

Mr Rusli Hendrawan (Chairman)

Mr Lee Sheng Kuang, James (Managing Director)
Mr Oey Tjie Ho

Mr Tang Chak Lam, Charlie

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr Cheung Kwok Ming
Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry, J.P.
Mr Lau Siu Ki, Kevin
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EEERBRE

The biographical details of the directors are set out on pages
21 to 23 of this Annual Report. The Board possesses a balance
of skill and experience which are appropriate for the
requirements of the business of the Group. A balanced
composition of executive and non-executive directors also
generates a strong independent element on the Board, which
can exercise independent judgement effectively and make
decision objectively for the best interests of the Company.

The Company does not at present have any officer with the
title of “chief executive officer” (“CEO") but instead the
duties of a CEO are performed by the Managing Director. In
order to have a clear division between the management of
the Board and the day-to-day management of the business
operation of the Company, the role of the Chairman is
separate from that of the Managing Director. The Chairman
focuses on overall corporate development and strategic
direction of the Group and provides leadership for the Board
and oversees the efficient functioning of the Board. The
Managing Director is responsible for all day-to-day corporate
management matters as well as planning and developing
the Group’s strategy. Such division of responsibilities helps
to reinforce their independence and to ensure a balance of
power and authority. There is no relationship (including
financial, business, family or other material or relevant
relationship) among members of the Board and in particular,
between the Chairman and the Managing Director.

All the independent non-executive directors of the Company
have appropriate professional qualifications and their
professional opinions raised in the Board meetings facilitate
the maintenance of good corporate governance practices.
All the independent non-executive directors are free from
any business or other relationship with the Company. The
Company has received from each independent non-executive
director an annual confirmation of independence. The Board
considers that each independent non-executive director is
independent in character and judgement and that they all
meet the specific independence criteria as required under
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Moreover, all the independent
non-executive directors are engaged on service contracts for
a term of two years, subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election in accordance with the provisions of the Bye-laws
of the Company.
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Nomination of Directors

The Board is empowered under the Company’s Bye-laws to
appoint any person as a director either to fill a casual vacancy
on or as an additional member of the Board. The selection
criteria are mainly based on the professional qualification
and experience of the candidate. A newly appointed director
must retire and be re-elected at the first general meeting
after his appointment. At each annual general meeting of
the Company, one-third of the directors for the time being
(or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then
the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall
retire from office by rotation. Every director, including those
appointed for a specific term, shall be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years. As such, no
director has a term of appointment longer than three years.
A retiring director shall be eligible for re-election.

In April 2007, a Board meeting was held to approve the
renewal of service agreement with an independent non-
executive director, Mr Cheung Kwok Ming for a term of two
years from 27th April, 2007 to 26th April, 2009.

Board and Management

To enable all directors to make informed decisions in the
Board meetings and to discharge their duties and
responsibilities, appropriate, complete and reliable
information prepared by the management are provided in a
timely manner. All directors are kept informed on a timely
basis of major changes that may affect the Group’s business,
including relevant rules and regulations. To reinforce
independence, the Board and each director can have separate
and independent access to the management of the Company
if additional information is required. To further assist the
directors to discharge their duties to the Company, the Board
has also established a written procedure to enable directors
to seek independent professional advice at the Company’s
expenses. No request was made by any director for such
independent professional advice in 2007.
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In order to have a clear principle in relation to the matters
specifically reserved to the Board for decisions, functions
between the Board and the management are formalized.
The Board has established a written guideline determining
which issues require a decision of the Board and those
delegated to the management. The guideline is reviewed by
the Board on a regular basis and has been posted on the
intranet of the Company. Matters reserved to the Board for
decision include the making of significant financial and legal
commitments, merger and acquisition, material asset
acquisition or disposal, the change of share capital, the
approval of financial reporting, budgeting, management
succession and representation to shareholders. The
management is responsible for the day-to-day running of
the Group. The management is required to submit reports
on the operations to the Board on a regular basis and make
recommendations to the Board on the development of major
projects or business proposals and their respective
implementation. The Board is of the view that such division
of responsibilities can enhance the corporate governance of
the Company.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in

respect of legal action against its directors and officers and
the insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual basis.
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Board Meeting

Regular Board meetings are held at least four times a year to
approve annual and interim results, review the business
operation and the internal control system of the Group and
the meeting schedule will be fixed at the beginning of each
year to facilitate fullest possible attendance. Between regular
meetings, other Board meetings are held to approve major
issues (if any). At least 14 days' notice of each regular
meeting is given to all directors whilst reasonable notices
are given for all other Board meetings. Agendas and
accompanying Board papers are sent not less than 3 days
before the date of Board meetings to ensure that the directors
are given sufficient review time. Draft minutes of Board
meetings and Board committee meetings are circulated to
directors for their review and comment while final version of
the said minutes, duly signed, are sent to all members for
their records. All said minutes are kept by the Company
Secretary of the Company and are open for inspection at
any reasonable time on reasonable notice by any director.

During the year ended 31st December, 2007, four Board
meetings were held and the individual attendance of directors
are set out as follows:
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Directors =} HERE
Mr Rusli Hendrawan (Chairman) Rusli Hendrawant & (&) 4
Mr Lee Sheng Kuang, James (Managing Director) FHRSTE (BEFRLIE) 4
Mr Oey Tjie Ho BEEMEAE 4
Mr Tang Chak Lam, Charlie BOER ST AE 4
Mr Cheung Kwok Ming o B BR %k A& 4
Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry, J.P. PR S A A A+ 4
Mr Lau Siu Ki, Kevin BBELRE 4
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Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting
than the required standard set out in the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers contained
in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”).
Having made specific enquiry of all directors of the Company,
all directors have confirmed that they had complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code and the
Company's code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions during the year.

Details of the directors’ interests in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company are set out on pages 49 to 50 of this
Annual Report.

To enhance the corporate governance of the Group as a
whole, the Board has established a written guideline on no
less exacting terms than the Model Code for employees of
the Company or director or employee of the Company’s
subsidiaries or holding company who are likely to be in
possession of unpublished price sensitive information in
relation to the Group or securities of the Company. No
incident of non-compliance was noted by the Company in
2007.

BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

The Board set up the Audit Committee in 2000 with specific
written terms of reference which deal clearly with its authority
and duties. The terms of reference have been posted on the
Company’s website. The Audit Committee is to review the
Group’s financial reporting, internal controls and corporate
governance issues and make relevant recommendations to
the Board.

The members of the Audit Committee include:
Mr Lau Siu Ki, Kevin (Committee Chairman)
Mr Cheung Kwok Ming

Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry, J.P.
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All Audit Committee members are independent non-executive
directors. During the year ended 31st December, 2007, four
Audit Committee meetings were held and the individual
attendance of members are set out as follows:
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Attended
Members K& R #
Mr Lau Siu Ki, Kevin BBETE 4
Mr Cheung Kwok Ming o B BR % A4 4
Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry, J.P. IO E ST A+ 4

In discharging its responsibilities, the Audit Committee had
mainly performed the following work during the year of
2007:

(i) reviewed the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with the applicable standards;

(ii) reviewed the draft interim and annual financial
statements and the related draft results announcements;

(iii) reviewed the change in accounting standards and
assessment of potential impacts on the Group's financial
statements;

(iv) reviewed the continuing connected transactions and
comment on the fairness and reasonableness of the
transactions;

(v) reviewed the Group’s internal control system and
discussed the relevant issues including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions; and

(vi) made recommendation on the appointment or
reappointment of the external auditors and approved
their terms of engagement.
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Remuneration Committee

The Board set up the Remuneration Committee in 2005 with
specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with its
authority and duties. The terms of reference have been posted
on the Company’s website. The Remuneration Committee’s
role is to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration policy and structure for directors and senior
management and to ensure that they are fairly rewarded for
their individual contribution to the Group’s overall
performance, having regard to the interests of shareholders.
The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee include
determining the specific remuneration packages of all
executive directors and senior management as well as
reviewing and approving performance-based remuneration
by reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved by
the Board from time to time.

The members of the Remuneration Committee include:
Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry, ,.p. (Committee Chairman)
Mr Cheung Kwok Ming

Mr Lau Siu Ki, Kevin

Mr Tang Chak Lam, Charlie

Except for Mr Tang Chak Lam, Charlie who is an executive
director, all Remuneration Committee members are
independent non-executive directors. During the year ended
31st December, 2007, the Remuneration Committee members
met once and the individual attendance of members are set
out as follows:
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Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry, J.P. SR JE ST A A T o
Mr Cheung Kwok Ming 9 B9 AR ot 4

Mr Lau Siu Ki, Kevin DBE L E

Mr Tang Chak Lam, Charlie BERTE
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The Remuneration Committee is accountable to the Board
and the following is a summary of its work during the year
of 2007:

(@) reviewed and approved the performance-based
remuneration of executive directors; and

(b) reviewed and approved the revised remuneration policy
for directors and senior management.

The main principles of remuneration policy of the Company
are:

(i) to retain and motivate executive directors and senior
management by linking their compensation with
performance as measured against corporate objectives;

(i) to align executive directors’ and senior management’s
remuneration with shareholders’ interests; and

(iii) to ensure that no director or senior management or
any of his associate is involved in deciding his own
remuneration.

When fixing the remuneration packages of executive
directors, considerations have been given to the qualifications
and experience of the executive directors, their duties and
responsibilities with and contributions to the Group, the level
remuneration of other comparable listed
companies in Hong Kong and the Group’s performance. The
principal elements of the remuneration packages of executive
directors of the Company include salary, director’s fee, double
pay, discretionary bonus and share options.

of directors’
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For achieving high standards of corporate governance, the
remuneration, comprising directors’ fee, of independent non-
executive directors will be put forward for shareholders’
approval at the annual general meeting of the Company.
Details of the remuneration of each director, on a named
basis, are disclosed in Note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements on pages 117 to 119 of this Annual Report.
Reimbursement is allowed for out-of pocket expenses incurred
(including traveling and hotel expenses) in connection with
the performance of directors’ duties.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR PREPARATION AND
REPORTING OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company acknowledge their responsibility
for preparing the financial statements of the Group in
accordance with statutory requirements and applicable
accounting standards. The directors will select suitable
accounting policies and apply them consistently, make
judgements and estimates that are prudent, fair and
reasonable and prepare the financial statements on a going
concern basis. The Board’s responsibility to present a
balanced, clear and understandable assessment extends to
annual and interim reports, other price-sensitive
announcements and other financial disclosures required under
the Listing Rules as well as the information required to be
disclosed pursuant to statutory requirements.

The statement of the auditor of the Company regarding
their reporting responsibilities for the financial statements of
the Group is set out on pages 55 to 57 of this Annual
Report.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has the ultimate responsibility to maintain a sound
and effective internal control system for the Group to
safeguard the shareholders’ investment and the Group's assets
and to ensure strict compliance with relevant laws, rules and
regulations. The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing
the effectiveness of the internal control system and reporting
to the Board.

The Group adopts the principles outlined in Internal Control
and Risk Management — A Basic Framework issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants as
yardstick in establishing its control environment. The scope
of internal control relates to areas including effectiveness
and efficiency of operations, reliability of financial reporting
and compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

During the year, the Board has reviewed the effectiveness of
the internal control system of the Group through the Audit
Committee. The review covers all material controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions of the Group. No material internal
control aspects of any significant problems were noted. Both
of the Audit Committee and the Board were satisfied that
the internal control system of the Group has been functioned
effectively during the review year.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year, Messrs PricewaterhouseCoopers, Auditor of
the Company (which for the purpose includes any entity
under common control, ownership or management with the
Auditor or any entity that a reasonable and informed third
party having knowledge of all relevant information would
reasonably conclude as part of the audit firm nationally or
internationally) provided the following audit and non-audit
services to the Group:
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HK$'000

T T

Audit services EETRTE 1,650
Non-audit services JEE T AR

Taxation services 7 IR 1% 178

1,828

The Audit Committee received written confirmation from the
external auditors on their independence and objectivity as
required under the Professional Ethics Statement 1.203A
“Independence for Assurance Engagements” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

According to the Bye-laws of the Company, shareholders’
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the voting right at general meetings of the Company,
can by written requisition to the Board or the Company
Secretary of the Company to convene a special general
meeting for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition. Any general meeting at which the passing of a
special resolution is to be considered shall be called by not
less than twenty-one clear days’ notice, whilst others may
be called by not less than fourteen clear days’' notice. To
further enhance the minority shareholders’ right, all
resolutions at any general meeting are decided on poll and
such practice has been adopted since 2005. The chairman of
any general meetings ensures that the shareholders are
informed of the procedure for voting by poll by way of
making the disclosure in the circulars to shareholders and
the explanation during the general meetings. The chairman
of general meetings also ensures compliance with the
requirements about voting by poll contained in the Listing
Rules and the Bye-laws of the Company.

In order to maintain an on-going dialogue with shareholders,
shareholders are encouraged to attend annual general
meeting of the Company at which the Chairman of the Board
and the chairmen of the Board committees are available to
answer questions related to the Group’s business.

As a channel of further promoting effective communication
as well as fulfilling the new requirements of the Listing Rules,
the corporate website, www.carrywealth.com, is maintained
by the Company to disseminate the relevant financial and
non-financial information on a timely basis and the published
information will be maintained at the above website for at
least five years.
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Shareholders’ comments and suggestions together with any
proposals put forward to shareholders’ meetings at a
reasonable time are welcome and such comments and
proposals can be sent in writing to the Company Secretary
at the Company’s address in Hong Kong or by e-mail to the
Company's website. The Board endeavors to answer all
invaluable questions of the shareholders.

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors as at
the date of this Annual Report, the public float of the shares
of the Company is sufficient.
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The directors present their report together with the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31st December, 2007.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The activities of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 36 to
the financial statements.

An analysis of the Group's performance for the year by
business and geographical segments is set out in Note 5 to
the financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the
consolidated income statement on page 58.

The directors declared an interim dividend of 3.0 Hong Kong
cents per ordinary share, totalling approximately
HK$11,009,000 for the six months ended 30th June, 2007
(2006: HK$10,830,000).

The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of
5.0 Hong Kong cents per ordinary share, totalling
approximately HK$18,398,000 for the year ended 31st
December, 2007 (2006: HK$21,663,000).

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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RESERVES

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the contributed surplus of the Company shall not be
distributed to the shareholders if there are reasonable grounds
for believing that:

(i) the Company is, or would after the payment be, unable
to pay its liabilities as they become due; or

(i) the realisable value of the Company's assets would
thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and
its issued share capital and share premium account.

As at 31st December, 2007, the Company had distributable
reserves amounting to HK$169,868,000 (2006:
HK$178,853,000), including contributed surplus of
HK$147,694,000 (2006: HK$147,694,000) which is
distributable subject to conditions as set out above.

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in Note 33 to the financial
statements.

DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to HK$110,620 (2006: HK$255,000).

PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in properties, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in Note 17 to the
financial statements.
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PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

The Group’s investment properties are situated at Workshops
Nos.1 and 2, 2nd Floor, Charm Centre, No.700 Castle Peak
Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong under the lease period from 1st
July, 1973 to 30th June, 2047, being leased to independent
third parties for office usage.

Pursuant to the Company’s announcement dated 4th March,
2008, Promaster Company Limited, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a binding provisional
agreement for sale and purchase dated 3rd March, 2008 in
respect of the above investment properties with Global Castle
International Limited, an independent third party, for a
consideration of HK$35,600,000. A circular containing further
details of the above disposal has been despatched to the
shareholders of the Company on 18th March, 2008.

Other details of the Group's investment properties are set
out in Note 18 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company
are set out in Note 32 to the financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set
out in Note 36 to the financial statements.

BANK BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank borrowings of the Group are set out in
Note 29 to the financial statements.
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page
6.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the
year. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased or sold any of the Company’s shares during the
year.

SHARE OPTIONS

Under the terms of the share option scheme of the Company
adopted on 8th May, 2002 (the “Scheme”), the Company
granted options to certain qualifying participants on 25th
October, 2005 to subscribe for a total of 17,160,000 shares
of HK$0.10 each in the Company at HK$0.536 per share at
a consideration of HK$1.00 per qualifying participant.

The principal terms of the Scheme are as follows:

(i) Purpose

The purpose of the Scheme is to provide incentives to
qualifying participants to contribute to the Group and/
or to enable the Group to recruit and/or to retain high-
calibre employees and attract resources that are valuable
to the Group.
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(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Qualifying participants

Any person being an employee, director (including
executive or non-executive director),
representative, professional adviser, customer, business
partner, joint venture partner, strategic partner, landlord
or tenant of, or any supplier or provider of goods or
services, to the Group, and any trustee(s) of a
discretionary trust of which one or more beneficiaries
belong to any of the abovementioned category(ies) of

consultant,

persons.

Maximum number of shares

The total number of shares available for issue under the
Scheme is 19,360,000 which is 5.26% of the issued
share capital as at the date of this Annual Report.

Maximum entitlement of each qualifying
participant

No qualifying participant shall be granted an option
which, if exercised in full, would result in such person’s
maximum entitlement exceeding 1% of the aggregate
number of shares for the time being issued and issuable
under the Scheme.

Option period

In respect of any particular option, such period
commencing on the date of grant or such later date as
the directors may decide and expiring on such date as
the directors may determine, such period not to exceed
10 years from the date of grant.

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)
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(vi)

(vii)

Acceptance of offer

An offer of the grant of an option shall remain open
for acceptance for a period of 30 days from the date
on which the option is offered. An offer of the grant of
the option shall be deemed to have been accepted when
the duplicate offer document constituting acceptance
of the option duly signed by the grantee together with
a remittance in favour of the Company of HK$1.00 by
way of consideration of the grant thereof is received by
the Company.

Subscription price

The subscription price in respect of any particular option
shall be such price as the directors may determine at
the date of grant of the relevant option but shall not
be less than whichever is the greater of:

(a) The closing price of the shares as stated in the
daily quotations sheet of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on the
date of grant;

(b) The average closing price of the Company’s shares
as stated in the daily quotations sheets in the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and

(c) The nominal value of the Company’s shares.
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(viii) The remaining life of the Scheme

The directors shall be entitled at any time within 10
years commencing on 8th May, 2002 to offer the grant

of an option to any qualifying participants.

Details of share options granted under the Scheme and
outstanding as at 31st December, 2007 are as follows:

Number of options
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EEAEN_ZEZE-_FDAN\HR
ATFERERRATIANAERZESE
EEROERE

BREZFAERETR T LF+ A
Tt —HBRARTTEZBBREFBET:

BREHE
Held at Granted Exercised Lapsed Held at 31st
1st January, during during during  December, Exercise
2007 the year the year the year 2007 price  Grant date Exercise from Exercise until
HK$
B®
® =t + 23
ZBBtE =
-A-H =t+-H
%H FRRE ERTRE FRER B’H fikE REEH e fEE
BT
Director Mr Rusli Hendrawan 3,600,000 - - - 3,600,000 0.536  25th October, 2005  1st November, 2005  31st October, 2008
("Mr Rusli”) —2%RF —ZTTRF —EENF
% ZRusli Hendrawan’t £ +A=+aB +-A-8 +A=1+-8
(TRusli4£1)
Director Mr Lee Sheng Kuang, James 3,600,000 - - - 3,600,000 0.536 25th October, 2005  1st November, 2005  31st October, 2008
("Mr Lee") ZZTRE ZZTRE ZZTNE
BSTHRELE +A=+&R +—-A-H +A=+-8”
(IF%4E])
Director Mr Oey Tjie Ho 500,000 - - - 500,000 0.536  25th October, 2005  1st November, 2005  31st October, 2008
("Mr Oey") —ZZR% ZE%E%F b3 R
BEREFMEL +AZ+EE +—A-H +A=+-8
(Ta%%£])
Director Mr Tang Chak Lam, Charlie 2,000,000 - (2,000,000 - - 0.536  25th October, 2005  1st November, 2005  31st October, 2008
("Mr Tang") (Note) ZBE0F k3 53 —BENE
ERBERAE () tAZtEE  +-A-A +A=t-8
([8%4%])
Continuous contract employees 5,920,000 - (4,720,000 - 1,200,000 0.536  25th October, 2005  1st November, 2005 ~ 31st October, 2008
SEANESR (Note) —ZZE% ZF%R%F ZEEN\EF
(W) +AZ+aRB +—A-H +A=+-8”
15,620,000 - (6,720,000 - 8,900,000
I I I
Note: B 5

The weighted average closing price per share immediately before the dates

on which the share options were exercised was HK$0.94.

No share options were granted or cancelled during the year.
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Mr Rusli Hendrawan (Chairman)

Mr Lee Sheng Kuang, James (Managing Director)
Mr Oey Tjie Ho

Mr Tang Chak Lam, Charlie

Mr Cheung Kwok Ming*

Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry, .p. #

Mr Lau Siu Ki, Kevin*

# Independent Non-Executive Director

In accordance with Bye-law 87 of the Company’s Bye-laws,
Mr Rusli Hendrawan, Mr Cheung Kwok Ming and Mr Kwok
Lam Kwong, Larry, J.p shall retire from office by rotation
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors who are proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract with the Company which is not determinable by
the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
and in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On 13th September, 2001, a management services agreement
(the “Management Services Agreement”) was entered into
between Carry Wealth Limited (“CWL"), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, and Shinning Century Limited
("SCL") pursuant to which, CWL provides SCL with
management services in Hong Kong at a management fee at
6% of the total sales at the invoiced value to customers of
SCL for each calendar month. The terms of the Management
Services Agreement, which are automatically renewed
annually unless terminated by either party, as amended by a
supplemental agreement dated 6th September, 2004 entered
between CWL and SCL (the “First Supplemental Agreement”)
will expire on 31st August, 2007 and be automatically
renewed every 3 years and until terminated pursuant to the
terms thereof for the purpose of complying with Chapter
14A of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

On 24th November, 2006, CWL and SCL had entered into
the second supplemental agreement (the “Second
Supplemental Agreement”) to further amend the terms of
the Management Services Agreement so as to comply with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules for determining the annual
cap amounts for the years ending 31st December, 2007,
2008 and 2009. Pursuant to the Second Supplemental
Agreement, the terms of the Management Services
Agreement (as amended by the First Supplemental
Agreement) expire on 31st December, 2006 instead of 31st
August, 2007 and will be renewed every 3 years unless
terminated pursuant to the terms of the Management Services
Agreement.
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SCL is owned as to 70% by the Company indirectly and
30% by Ms Chen Mei Chuan, Jennifer. Ms Chen is also the
managing director of SCL. The ongoing transactions between
CWL and SCL as aforesaid constitute connected transactions
for the Company under the Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company
have reviewed the transactions and confirmed that the

transactions have been entered into:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Company and CWL;

on normal commercial terms; and

in accordance with the Management Services Agreement
(as amended by the First and Second Supplemental
Agreements) on terms that are fair and reasonable and
in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as
a whole.

The auditor of the Company has confirmed to the board of

directors that the transactions:

(i)

(i)

(1) have received the approval of the Company’s board
of directors;

(2) are in accordance with the pricing policies of the
Company;,

(3) have been entered into in accordance with the
terms of the Management Services Agreement (as
amended by the First and Second Supplemental
Agreements); and

the aggregate amount of management fees charged by
CWL amounted to HK$4,847,000 which did not exceed
the cap amount of HK$7,500,000 as disclosed in the
Company’'s announcement dated 1st December, 2006.
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INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

As at 31st December, 2007, the interests of the directors of
the Company in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFO") or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
are as follows:

(a) Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company
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(a) FL2FEIREEO.10# T & iE K

Number of ordinary shares

EERKROBE
Percentage
Name of Personal Family Corporate Other Total of issued
Director ~ Capacity interests interests interests interests interests share capital
HERT
Exps 56 8 A #E 25 KRS DR EH Hiti 25 BEzxz RIEIH
Mr Rusli Interest of controlled - - 169,062,000 - 169,062,000 45.96
corporations (Note)
Ruslife e REHIZEZ # & GEY
Mr Lee Interest of controlled - - 169,062,000 - 169,062,000 45.96
corporations (Note)
FE4 REHEEZER GEY
Mr Tang Beneficial owner 2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000 0.54
& BREBRA
Note: B 51

The above shares were held by Respected International Limited (“RIL"),
which was ultimately owned as to 46.03% and 46.03% by Mr Rusli
and Mr Lee respectively through their respective wholly-owned

companies.

L 3tt B% 19 B Respected International Limited
(TRILI) # A m&ZABAIARusiEERETLRED
FEBRREEAZ2EER R ARETEHF46.03%
R 46.03%HE %5
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(b) Derivatives to ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in

(b) 42 F) A% HE {E0.107# T & i B

the Company ZTTEIR
Unlisted options Percentage of
(physically settled issued share
Name of director Capacity equity derivatives) held capital
BFAEFLTERE HE®T
EEpnA =87} (BYHEERESTETR) RAE DL
Mr Rusli Beneficial owner 3,600,000 0.97
Ruslist & EnEA A
Mr Lee Beneficial owner 3,600,000 0.97
TR AE BEmERAA
Mr Oey Beneficial owner 500,000 0.13
| EnEA A
Note: B 7

The above share options were granted to directors under the Scheme
as defined in the section headed “SHARE OPTIONS” above.

All the interests stated above represent long positions. Save
as disclosed above, as at 31st December, 2007, none of the
directors or chief executives of the Company had any interests
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any associated corporation
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in
the register required to be kept under section 352 of the
SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL

SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31st December, 2007, the interests of the substantial
shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules), other than
directors or chief executives, of the Company in the shares
of the Company as recorded in the register required to be

kept under section 336 of the SFO are as follows:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company
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FATFISREEO0.10/4 Tt & & B

Percentage of

Number of issued share
Name of shareholder Capacity ordinary shares capital
hEe &7
BRRERB =80 EERROEE BRAEAB DL
RIL (Note 1) Beneficial owner 169,062,000 45 .96
RIL (Pff&E1) EmEEA
Bright Asia Worldwide Interest of a controlled 169,062,000 45.96
Corporation (Note 1) corporation
Bright Asia Worldwide REHEARE 2 Ew
Corporation (FfzE1)
Maxflow Investment Ltd. Interest of a controlled 169,062,000 45.96
(Note 1) corporation
Maxflow Investment Ltd. REHEE 2 E
(BRFEET)
Greatwood Investment Beneficial owner 62,000,000 16.85

Trading Limited (Note 2)

Greatwood Investment

Trading Limited (M 5£2)

EmfaA
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Percentage of

Number of issued share
Name of shareholder Capacity ordinary shares capital
HE®T
e 51 EERRAHE BAES
Mr Yeung Sze Kei (Note 2) Interest of a controlled 62,000,000 16.85
corporation
B ESTE (HiE2) RiEHEE 2
Preferable Situation Assets Beneficial owner 18,701,000 5.08
Limited (Note 3)
Preferable Situation Assets ~ Bz #A A
Limited (Fff 5% 3)
Mr Webb David Michael Beneficial owner 3,323,000 0.90
(Note 3)
Webb David Michael%t 4 EmEAA
(BFEE3)
Interest of a controlled 18,701,000 5.08
corporation
REHEAE 2 Ew
Notes: B 5 -

1. 169,062,000 shares in the Company were held by RIL, a company in
which Mr Rusli and Mr Lee held 46.03% and 46.03% equity interests
respectively through Bright Asia Worldwide Corporation, which was

wholly-owned by Mr Rusli and Maxflow Investment Ltd., which was

wholly-owned by Mr Lee. Accordingly, Mr Rusli, Mr Lee, Bright Asia

Worldwide Corporation and Maxflow Investment Ltd. were all deemed
to be interested in 169,062,000 shares in the Company. These
interests were duplicated with the interests of Mr Rusli and Mr Lee
as disclosed in the section headed "INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS”.

2. These shares were held by Greatwood Investment Trading Limited,

which was wholly-owned by Mr Yeung Sze Kei.
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3. Pursuant to a notice filed under Part XV of the SFO, 18,701,000
shares in the Company were held by Preferable Situation Assets
Limited, which was wholly-owned by Mr Webb David Michael.
Accordingly, Mr Webb David Michael was deemed to be interested
in 18,701,000 shares in the Company. Mr Webb David Michael had
an aggregate interest in 22,024,000 shares.

All the interests stated above represent long positions. Save
as disclosed above, as at 31st December, 2007, none of the
substantial shareholders, other than directors or chief
executives, of the Company had any interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept under section
336 of the SFO.

INTERESTS OF OTHER PERSONS

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS” and “INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS”
above, the register required to be kept under section 336 of
the SFO shows that as at 31st December, 2007, the Company
had not been notified of any other person who had an
interest or short position in the shares and underlying shares
of the Company.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company was entered into or existed during the year.
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MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year
attributable to the Group’s major suppliers and customers
are as follows:

(i)  Purchases

—  the largest supplier 32%

- five largest suppliers combined 56%
(i) Sales

—  the largest customer 46%

- five largest customers combined 89%

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholder of
the Company (which to the knowledge of the directors owns
more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had an interest
in the major suppliers or customers noted above at any time
during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's Bye-laws or the Laws of Bermuda.

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible, offer

themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board
Lee Sheng Kuang, James
Managing Director

Hong Kong, 20th March, 2008
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

PRICEAATERHOUSE( QOPERS

B M %D

BOBKEEMEBH

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CARRY WEALTH HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Carry Wealth Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 58 to
152, which comprise the consolidated and company balance
sheets as at 31st December, 2007, and the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This
responsibility includes designing, implementing and
maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable
in the circumstances.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
22/F, Prince's Building
Central, Hong Kong
Telephone (852) 2289 8888
Facsimile (852) 2810 9888
www.pwchk.com
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B D3R &

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and true and fair presentation of the financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
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OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and
the Group as at 31st December, 2007 and of the Group’s
profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 20th March, 2008
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

mEWARK
For the year ended 31st December, 2007 B Z =TT +F+-_A=+—HI FE
2007 2006
—EBEELE —ZTTNF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 2 FTER FAT
Revenues W g 5 1,056,861 1,211,651
Cost of sales BHE KR 7 (817,290) (972,856)
Gross profit E7 239,571 238,795
Other (losses)/gain — net Hih (F18) W= — F8 6 (2,659) 56
Selling expenses HE R 7 (36,860) (46,146)
Administrative expenses THRAX 7 (120,575) (107,386)
Operating profit 5 & 79,477 85,319
Finance income B & WA 8 6,730 3,281
Finance costs A& KR 9 (6,637) (5,988)
Share of profit of associates DA E 2 B A 1,738 4,839
Profit before income tax B P13 150 A i A 81,308 87,451
Income tax expense Frig i < 10 (27,228) (18,741)
Profit for the year FE R 54,080 68,710
Attributable to: B3I AT
Equity holders of the Company RAREZFTFAA 11 48,950 68,116
Minority interests LY R RER 5,130 594
54,080 68,710
Earnings per share for FANHARR A
profit attributable ERFEA ARG
to the equity holders i M) 2 IR & A
of the Company
during the year
— basic (HK cents) — ZE A& (GB) 12 13.40 18.88
— diluted (HK cents) — #5E (Bl 12 13.23 18.71
Dividends A% B 13 29,407 32,493

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
HEBEERER

As at 31st December, 2007 R-ZEZE+F+_HF=+—H

2007 2006
—BELE —TERF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 2 FTER FAET
ASSETS 'E
Non-current assets IRBEE
Goodwill B 16 1,100 1,100
Properties, plant and equipment ME- -BERFZE 17 152,141 108,326
Investment properties wREWE 18 28,300 22,300
Leasehold land and land use rights ME 4 b K+ {E A 19 12,546 2,235
Non-current deposits MRS 20 - 7,223
Interests in associates REE ARl 2 = 22 49,154 47,036
Deferred income tax assets BEEMEMEE 30 2,868 4,279
Financial assets T RE E 23 9,314 9,028
255,423 201,527
Current assets RBEE
Inventories FE 25 86,943 157,101
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H b fE W RIR 26 138,788 138,269
Financial assets TREE 23 12,900 156
Time deposits BT - 3,470
Cash and cash equivalents RekReFEMEER 28 109,952 91,453
348,583 390,449
Total assets mEE 604,006 591,976
EQUITY ¥ %=
Capital and reserves attributable HBZAQATEZFEA
to the Company’s equity holders EEEARE #E
Share capital N 32 36,777 36,105
Other reserves H{th 7 1 33 37,806 33,660
Retained earnings RE AT
— Proposed final dividend — B R R B AR B 18,398 21,663
- Others —Hh 232,730 213,500
325,711 304,928
Minority interests LY R RER 8,247 2,594
Total equity BRER 333,958 307,522

EBEZERERAA

e 2007 FEIRE
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

mEEEAEBX
As at 31st December, 2007 R=ZZFEZFE+F+=-A=+—H
2007 2006
—EBELEFE —ZTTF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FEx FET
LIABILITIES =R
Non-current liabilities FARBEE
Bank borrowings RITER 29 33,305 25,250
Deferred income tax liabilities REMEHAE 30 7,384 4,771
40,689 30,021
Current liabilities REBERE
Derivative financial instruments TESMTAE 27 12,617 -
Trade and other payables B 5 & H M ENFRIA 31 128,333 171,362
Income tax payable FERTPTISHR 15,636 14,666
Bank borrowings RITENK 29 72,773 68,405
229,359 254,433
Total liabilities wes 270,048 284,454
Total equity and liabilities BERREE 604,006 591,976
Net current assets REBEEFE 119,224 136,016
Total assets less current liabilities REERARBHEE 374,647 337,543
Lee Sheng Kuang, James Tang Chak Lam, Charlie
Managing Director Executive Director
g HITEFE
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these  BEM 2 MIsF BRIt SR A M SRR 2 26

consolidated financial statements.
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BALANCE SHEET
EERER

As at 31st December, 2007 R-ZEZE+F+_HF=+—H

2007 2006
—EBELE —TTNRF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt 2 FTER FHET
ASSETS 'E
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RETB AR Z2&E 21 165,938 - 166,346
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries S RNEIDSE 24 86,297 93,080
Other receivables H {th & W 3k IE 26 1,119 1,049
Cash and cash equivalents RekReFEEER 28 166 145
87,582 94,274
Total assets WEE 253,520 260,620
EQUITY R
Capital and reserves attributable HZAAT[ERFAA
to the Company’s equity holders  E{hERE #E
Share capital A& A 32 36,777 36,105
Other reserves H b {15 33 190,103 187,174
Retained earnings RE &N
— Proposed final dividend — R R EIAR B 18,398 21,663
- Others — HAh 3,776 9,496
Total equity AR 249,054 254,438
LIABILITIES &
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables and accruals HMENRIERETER 31 4,466 6,182
Total liabilities BmEE 4,466 6,182
Total equity and liabilities HERREE 253,520 260,620
Net current assets RBEEFE 83,116 88,092
Total assets less current liabilities #REERARBER 249,054 254,438
Lee Sheng Kuang, James Tang Chak Lam, Charlie
Managing Director Executive Director
EFRREIE HITESE

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial  B& M = Mt s B AKX It 5 B #5 R R 2 2010 -

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

REERESDR

For the year ended 31st December, 2007 # %

—EE+FF A=+ —HIUFE

Attributable to equity holders
of the Company

FATRREEAEMN
Share Other Retained Minority
capital reserves earnings interests Total
D8
BEA HteiEE REERN  RRER &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FET FHET FET
Balance at 1st January, 2006 RZEEREF
“A-RE®R 36,003 36330 182722 1704 256,759
Fair value gain/(losses), net of tax; AR B/
(BX) HRHE
- available-for-sale financial assets — A& EMEE - 528 - - 528
- properties, plant and equipment  —¥¥ [ E K & - (1,021) - 28 (993)
Disposal of available-for-sale HEMHEHEZ
financial assets SREE - 297 - - 297
Currency translation differences M=% - 10,281 - 268 10,549
Transfer of reserve HEER - (13,146) 13,146 - -
Net (expense)/income recognised REZEERER
directly in equity 2% (Fx /MSU\ - (3,061) 13,146 296 10,381
Profit for the year FEERM - - 68,116 594 68,710
Total recognised (expense)/ —EERFEHER
income for 2006 (%) /A msE - - (3,061) 81,262 ¢ 8%0 79,091
Employee share option scheme: EEBRENS:
- exercise of share options —BhEzTE 102 445 - - 547
~ lapsed of share options —ERE R - (54) 54 - -
2005 final dividend paid ENZZERERABKRE - - (18,045) - (18,045)
2006 interim dividend paid ENZZEERNFRHRE - - (10,830) - (10,830)
_________ 02 391 (s21) - (28328)
Balance at 31st December, 2006 RZEEREF
TZA=+—H&#% 36,105 33,660 235,163 2,594 307,522
I I
Balance at 1st January, 2007 RZZETLF
—A—B#&# 36,105 33,660 235,163 2,594 307,522
Fair value gain, net of tax: DBk
MEHE:
- available-for-sale financial assets —AJ#tHEZ SMEE - 22 - - 22
- properties, plant and equipment  —¥1 % K E R RE - 340 - 26 366
Disposal of available-for-sale HEMHBEZ
financial assets cREE — (392) — = (392)
Currency translation differences EXER - 1,247 - 1,078 2,325
Net income recognised RESHEEER
directly in equity FWA - 1,217 - 1,104 2,321
Profit for the year FEHF - 48,950 5,130 54,080
Total recognised income for 2007 —ETZTLFERER
LONE - 1,217 48,950 6,234 56,401
Employee share option scheme: EEERES:
— exercise of share options —BREZTE 672 2,929 - - 3,601
2006 final dividend paid BERZTTRFRAR - - (21,976) (581) (22,557)
2007 interim dividend paid ENZETLFPEHRK - - (11,009) - (11,009)
. 672 2,929 . (32,985) (581) B (29,965)
Balance at 31st December, 2007 RZTZE+F
+-RA=1+—B#&% 36,777 37,806 251,128 8,247 333,958
I I I I I
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these — BEMI Z i sE B A It 474 B ISRk 2 26

consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
SERERNER

For the year ended 31st December, 2007 #Z =TT +F+-_HA=1—HIFE

2007 2006
—BELE —TTRF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5k FTER FAT
Cash flows from operating activities R & FE R &R E
Cash generated from operations REEEAZRS 34(a) 129,685 108,281
Interest paid RENPAINSS (6,637) (5,988)
Hong Kong profits tax (paid)/refund (B8 /REIFEBFEH (18,583) 170
Overseas tax paid E &8N IR (4,000) (3,493)
Net cash generated from KETHELERSFHE
operating activities 100,465 98,970
Cash flow from investing activities REZFE R &R E
Purchase of properties, BEVE BELRRE
plant and equipment (70,293) (23,993)
Proceeds from disposal of properties, HEME BB M&E
plant and equipment P15 %8 4,130 473
Purchase of financial assets BARARLERTA
at fair value through profit or loss Bl s eomEE (15,610) -
Proceeds from disposal of HEZRARBEIA
financial assets at fair value Bz emEE
through profit or loss P18 518 5,412 5,898
Proceeds from disposal of HERIHREEZE/MEE
available-for-sale financial assets P18 518 756 1,905
Deposits paid for a land use right Bt AERe - (7,223)
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries & [ B A & 115 2B - 6,391
Acquisition of an associate W g — 1 B & 2 A - (3,000)
Dividend income received W B — fEl B & R R 2
from an associate % M A 2,899 -
Decrease in time deposits EBFEROR L 3,470 -
Interest received 2 A 6,730 3,281
Net cash used in investing activities KEBEEHFAFR S (62,506) (16,268)

BEZERERAA

e 2007 FEIRE
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
mERSRER
For the year ended 31st December, 2007 B Z=FFT+HF+_-_A=+—HI FE

2007 2006
—E2tE —TTAF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5k FTER FHTT
Cash flows from financing activities BIEFE 2R &R E
Proceeds from issuance of BTEBRAERIEA
ordinary shares 3,601 547
Proceeds from bank borrowings IRITERATER 34(b) 413,195 432,563
Repayments of bank borrowings BERTENX 34(b) (400,772) (440,545)
Dividends paid to equity holders of EfARREE
the Company BEAKE (32,985) (28,875)
Dividends paid to a minority B —RHER R
shareholder of a subsidiary —HLEBRERE (581) -
Net cash used in financing activities METEMAFE® (17,542) (36,310)
Effect of foreign exchange INESERE ) o B
rate changes (1,918) (1,392)
Net increase in cash and RekReFEER
cash equivalents 2N 18,499 45,000
Cash and cash equivalents FReREFEER
at beginning of the year 91,453 46,453
Cash and cash equivalents FRES MRS FBEIEHR
at end of the year 109,952 91,453

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these  BEM 2 MIsEBA I SR A IS IRER 2 26
consolidated financial statements. 7 e
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL INFORMATION

Carry Wealth Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) manufactures and
trades garment products. The Group has production
facilities in Indonesia, Lesotho, El Salvador and Mainland
China.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated
in Bermuda. The address of its registered office is
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda.

The Company is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented
in thousands of units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$'000),
unless otherwise stated.

These consolidated financial statements have been
approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 20th
March, 2008.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 % 3R 2= MY EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of Carry
Wealth Holdings Limited have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS”). The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of
buildings, investment properties, financial assets
and financial liabilities, which are carried at fair
value.

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Company’s accounting
policies.

The areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the financial statements
are disclosed in Note 4.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a) Standards, amendment and

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
% 3R 2= MY aE

2 FEENBREBE (&)

21 WREE ()
(a) R-EBEZELHFLEHZE

interpretations effective in 2007

HKFRS 7, ‘Financial instruments: Disclosures’,
and the complementary amendment to HKAS
1, 'Presentation of financial statements -
Capital disclosures’, introduces new disclosures
relating to financial instruments. The Group
assess the impact of HKFRS 7 and HKAS 1
(Amendment) and considers that it does not
have any impact on the classification and
valuation of the Group's financial instruments.
The main additional disclosures will be the
sensitivity analysis to market risk and capital
disclosures. The Group has applied HKFRS 7
and HKAS 1 (Amendment) from 1st January,
2007.

HK(IFRIC) — Int 10, ‘Interim financial reporting
and impairment’, prohibits the impairment
losses recognised in an interim period on
goodwill and investments in equity instruments
and in financial assets carried at cost to be
reversed at a subsequent balance sheet date.
This standard does not have any impact on
the Group’s financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 % 3R 2= MY EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) Standards, amendments and

interpretations effective in 2007 but not
relevant to the Group

The following standards, amendments and
interpretations to published standards are
mandatory for accounting periods beginning
on or after 1st January, 2007 but they are
not relevant to the Group's operations:

HKFRS 4, ‘Insurance contracts’;

HK(IFRIC) — Int 7, "Applying the restatement
approach under HKAS 29, Financial reporting
in hyper-inflationary economies’;

HK(IFRIC) — Int 8, ‘Scope of HKFRS 2’; and

HK(IFRIC) — Int 9, ‘Re-assessment of embedded
derivatives'.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
% 3R 2= MY aE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESHHEREE (#)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

21 WREE ()
(c) HAREMAAXEFILE

(c) Standards, amendments and

interpretations to existing standards that
are not yet effective and have not been
early adopted by the Group

The following standards, amendments and
interpretations to existing standards have been
published and are mandatory for the Group’s
accounting periods beginning on or after 1st
March, 2007 or later periods, but the Group
has not early adopted them:

HKAS 23 (Amendment), ‘Borrowing costs’
(effective from 1st January, 2009). The
amendment requires an entity to capitalise
borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset (one that takes a substantial
period of time to get ready for use or sale) as
part of the cost of that asset. The option of
immediately expensing those borrowing costs
will be removed. The Group will apply HKAS
23 (Amended) from 1st January, 2009 but is
currently not applicable to the Group as there
are no qualifying assets and it is not expected
to have any impact on the Group's financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ik E e

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(c)

Standards, amendments and
interpretations to existing standards that
are not yet effective and have not been
early adopted by the Group (Continued)

HKFRS 8, ‘Operating segments ‘ (effective from
1st January, 2009). HKFRS 8 replaces HKAS
14 and aligns segment reporting with the
requirements of the US standard SFAS 131,
‘Disclosures about segments of an enterprise
and related information’. The new standard
requires a ‘management approach’, under
which segment information is presented on
the same basis as that used for internal
reporting purposes. The Group will apply
HKFRS 8 from 1st January, 2009 but it is not
expected to have any impact on the Group's
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
% 3R 2= MY aE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2 FEENBREBE (&)

21 WREE ()
(c) HAREMAAXEFILE

(c) Standards, amendments and

interpretations to existing standards that
are not yet effective and have not been
early adopted by the Group (Continued)

HK(IFRIC) — Int 11, '"HKFRS 2 — Group and
treasury share transactions’ (effective from 1st
March, 2007). HK(IFRIC) — Int 11 provides
guidance on whether share-based transactions
involving treasury shares or involving Group
entities (for example, options over a parent’s
shares) should be accounted for as equity-
settled or cash-settled share-based payment
transactions in the stand-alone accounts of
the parent and Group companies. The Group
will apply HK(IFRIC) — Int 11 from 1st January,
2008, but it is not expected to have any
impact on the Group's financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 % 3R 2= MY EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2 FEENBREBE (&)

21 WREE ()
(c) HAREMAAXEFILE

(c) Standards, amendments and

interpretations to existing standards that
are not yet effective and have not been
early adopted by the Group (Continued)

HK(IFRIC) — Int 14, '"HKAS 19 — The limit on a
defined benefit asset, minimum funding
requirements and their interaction’ (effective
from 1st January, 2008). HK(IFRIC) — Int 14
provides guidance on assessing the limit in
HKAS 19 on the amount of the surplus that
can be recognised as an asset. It also explains
how the pension asset or liability may be
affected by a statutory or contractual minimum
funding requirement. The Group will apply HK
(IFRIC) = Int 14 from 1st January, 2008, but it
is not expected to have any impact on the
Group’s financial statements.

The adoption of the above standards,
amendments and interpretations does not
result in substantial changes to the Group's
accounting policies.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and all of its
subsidiaries made up to 31st December.

(a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the
Group has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies generally accompanying
a shareholding of more than one half of the
voting rights. The existence and effect of
potential voting rights that are currently
exercisable or convertible are considered when
assessing whether the Group controls another
entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are de-consolidated from the date
that control ceases.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ik E e

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(a)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

The purchase method of accounting is used
to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries
by the Group. The cost of an acquisition is
measured as the fair value of the assets given,
equity instruments issued and liabilities
incurred or assumed at the date of exchange,
plus costs directly attributable to the
acquisition. Identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in
a business combination are measured initially
at their fair values at the acquisition date,
irrespective of the extent of any minority
interest. The excess of the cost of acquisition
over the fair value of the Group’s share of the
identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as
goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is less than
the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired, the difference is
recognised directly in the income statement.

The gain or loss on disposal of a subsidiary
represents the difference between the
proceeds of the sale and the Group’s share of
its net assets together with any unamortised
goodwill or goodwill/negative goodwill taken
to reserves and which was not previously
charged or recognised in the consolidated
income statement and also any related
accumulated exchange fluctuation reserve.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Inter-company transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an
impairment indicator of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

In the Company’s balance sheet, investments
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision
for impairment losses. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted by the Company
on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Transactions and minority interests

Minority interests represent the interests of
outside shareholders in the operating results
and net assets of subsidiaries.

The Group applies a policy of treating
transactions with minority interests as
transactions with parties external to the
Group. Disposals to minority interests result
in gains and losses for the Group that are
recorded in the consolidated income
statement. Purchases from minority interests
result in goodwill, being the difference
between any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value
of net assets of the subsidiary.

(a)

(b)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ik E e

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(c)

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the
Group has significant influence but not
control, generally accompanying a
shareholding of between 20% and 50% of
the voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of
accounting and are initially recognised at cost.
The Group’s investment in associates includes
goodwill (net of any accumulated impairment
loss) identified on acquisition (Note 2.8).

The Group’s share of its associates post-
acquisition profits or losses is recognised in
the income statement, and its share of post-
acquisition
recognised in reserves. The cumulative post-
acquisition movements are adjusted against
the carrying amount of the investment. When
the Group’s share of losses in an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in the associate,
including any other unsecured receivables, the
Group does not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate.

movements in reserves s
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
% 3R 2= MY aE

2 FEENBREBE (&)

2.2 FEKA (#)

(c) Associates (Continued)

Unrealised gains on transactions between the
Group and its associate are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the associate.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of the associate has been
changed, where necessary, to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Dilution gains and losses in associates are
recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

2.3 Segment reporting

A business segment is a group of assets and
operations engaged in providing products or
services that are subject to risks and returns that
are different from those of other business
segments. A geographical segment is engaged in
providing products or services within a particular
economic environment that are subject to risks and
returns that are different from those of segments
operating in other economic environments.

The Group has determined that geographical
segments by location of customers be presented
as the primary reporting format. Business segments
are not presented as the secondary reporting format
because the Group’s turnover and operations were
solely contributed by the garment manufacturing
business.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ik E e

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’'s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (“the
functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollar, which is the Company’s functional
and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are recognised in the income statement.

Changes in the fair value of monetary
securities denominated in foreign currency and
classified as available-for-sale are analysed
between translation differences resulting from
changes in the amortised cost of the security
and other changes in the carrying amount of
the security. Translation differences are
recognised in the income statement and other
changes in carrying amount are recognised in
equity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(b) Transactions and balances (Continued)

(c)

Translation differences on non-monetary
financial assets and liabilities such as equities
held at fair value through profit or loss are
reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation differences on non-monetary
financial assets such as equities classified as
available-for-sale are included in other
reserves.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the
group entities, none of which has the currency
of a hyperinflationary economy, that have a
functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follow:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance
sheet presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average
exchange rates; and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised as a separate component of
equity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 % 3R 2= MY EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c) Group companies (Continued)

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of the net investment in
foreign entities and of borrowings, are taken
to shareholders’ equity. When a foreign
operation is sold, such exchange differences
are recognised in the income statement as
part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising
on the acquisition of a foreign entity are
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
entity and are translated at the closing rate.

2.5 Properties, plant and equipment

Buildings, comprises mainly of factories and offices,
are shown at fair value and is determined by
directors based on valuations by external
independent valuers which are performed on an
annual basis, less subsequent depreciation for
buildings. Any accumulated depreciation at the date
of revaluation is eliminated against the gross
carrying amount of the asset and the net amount
is restated to the revalued amount of the asset. All
other plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses.

Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other repairs and
maintenance are expensed in the income statement
during the financial year in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
% 3R 2= MY aE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.5 Properties, plant and equipment (Continued)

2 FEENBREBE (&)

25 MR -BEREM ()

Increases in the carrying amount arising on
revaluation of buildings are credited to fixed asset
revaluation reserve in equity. Decreases that offset
previous increases of the same asset are charged
against fixed asset revaluation reserve directly in
equity and all other decreases are expensed in the
income statement.

Properties, plant and equipment are depreciated
at rates sufficient to write off their cost or valuation
over their estimated useful lives on a straight-line
basis. The principal annual rates are as follow:

Buildings 5%
Leasehold improvements 5% to 20%
Plant and machinery 10% to 30%

Furniture, office equipment

and motor vehicles 10% to 30%
The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount
and are recognised in the income statement. When
revalued assets are sold, the amounts included in
fixed assets reserves are transferred to retained
earnings.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 % 3R 2= MY EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.5

2.6

2.7

Properties, plant and equipment (Continued)

Construction-in-progress represents buildings under
construction and is stated at cost. Cost includes
the cost of construction of buildings and interest
charges arising from borrowings used to finance
these assets during the period of construction or
installation and testing, if any. No provision for
depreciation is made on construction-in-progress
until such time as the relevant assets are completed
and ready for intended use. When the assets
concerned are bought into use, the costs are
transferred to buildings and depreciated in
accordance with the policy as stated above.

Leasehold land and land use rights

The up-front prepayments made for leasehold land
and land use rights are accounted for as operating
leases. They are expensed in the income statement
on a straight-line basis over the periods of the
lease or the land use rights, or when there is
impairment, the impairment is expensed in the
income statement.

Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or
for capital appreciation or both, and that is not
occupied by the companies in the consolidated
group, is classified as investment property.
Investment property comprises land held under
operating leases and buildings held under finance
leases.

Land held under operating leases are classified and
accounted for as investment property when the
rest of the definition of investment property is met.
The operating lease is accounted for as if it were a
finance lease.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
% 3R 2= MY aE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.7 Investment properties (Continued)

2 FEENBREBE (&)

2.7 ¥#EME ()

Investment property is measured initially at its cost,
including related transaction costs.

After initial recognition, investment property is
carried at fair value. Fair value is based on active
market prices, adjusted if necessary, for any
difference in the nature, location or condition of
the specific asset.

The fair value of investment property reflects rental
income from current leases and assumptions about
rental income from future leases in the light of
current market conditions. The fair value also
reflects, on a similar basis, any cash outflows that
could be expected in respect of the property. Some
of those outflows are recognised as a liability,
including finance lease liabilities in respect of land
classified as investment property, while others,
including contingent rent payments, are not
recognised in the financial statements.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s
carrying amount only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably. All other repairs and
maintenance costs are expensed in the income
statement during the financial year in which they
are incurred.

Changes in fair values are recognised in the income
statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 % 3R 2= MY EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.7

2.8

Investment properties (Continued)

If an item of properties, plant and equipment
becomes an investment property because its use
has changed, any difference resulting between the
carrying amount and the fair value of this item at
the date of transfer is recognised in equity as a
revaluation of properties, plant and equipment
under HKAS 16. However, if a fair value gain
reverses a previous impairment loss, the gain is
recognised in the income statement.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an
acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share
of the net identifiable assets of the acquired
subsidiary/associate at the date of acquisition.
Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is included
in intangible assets. Goodwill on acquisitions of
associates is included in investments in associates
and is tested annually for impairment and carried
at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Impairment losses on goodwill are not reversed.
Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include
the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the
entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for
the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation
is made to those cash-generating units or groups
of cash-generating units that are expected to
benefit from the business combination in which
the goodwill arose.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
% 3R 2= MY aE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.9 Impairment of investments in subsidiaries,

2 FEENBREBE (&)

29 RBAFR HKELRARESR

associates and non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or have
not yet been available for use are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the
asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in
use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-
generating units). Assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ik E e

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Financial assets

The

Group classifies its financial assets in the

following categories: at fair value through profit
or loss, loans and receivables and available-for-sale.
The classification depends on the purpose for which
the financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its financial assets
at initial recognition and re-evaluates this
designation at every reporting date.

(a)

(b)

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

This category consists of financial assets held
for trading and those designated at fair value
through profit or loss at inception. A financial
asset is classified in this category if acquired
principally for the purpose of selling in the
short term or if so designated by management.
Derivatives are also categorised as held for
trading unless they are designated as hedges.
Assets in this category are classified as current
assets if they are either held for trading or
are expected to be realised within 12 months
of the balance sheet date.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determined
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in currents assets,
except for maturities greater than 12 months
after the balance sheet date. These are
classified as non-current assets. Loans and
receivables are classified as ‘trade and other
receivables’ in the balance sheet (Notes 2.12).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
% 3R 2= MY aE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Financial assets (Continued)

2 FEENBREBE (&)

210 &SI E ()

(c) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated in this
category or not classified in any of the other
categories. They are included in non-current
assets unless management intends to dispose
of the investment within 12 months of the
balance sheet date.

Purchases and sales of investments are recognised
on trade-date that is the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments
are initially recognised at fair value plus transactions
costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value
through income statement. Financial assets carried
at fair value through profit or loss and transaction
costs are expensed in the income statement.
Investments are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the investments have
expired or have been transferred and the Group
has transferred substantially all risks and rewards
of ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets and
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are subsequently carried at fair value.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value of the financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss category are presented in the income
statement in the year in which they arise. Dividend
income from financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss is recognised in the income statement
as part of other income when the Group’s right to
receive payments is established.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 % 3R 2= MY EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Financial assets (Continued)

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities
denominated in foreign currency and classified as
available-for-sale are analysed between translation
differences resulting from changes in amortised cost
of the security and other changes in the carrying
amount of the security. The translation differences
resulting from changes in amortised cost are
recognised in income statement and other changes
in amortised costs are recognised in equity. For
changes in the fair values of non-monetary
securities classified as available-for-sale are
recognised in equity.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are
sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value
adjustments recognised in equity are included in
the income statement.

The fair values of quoted investments are based
on current bid prices. If the market for a financial
asset is not active, the Group establishes fair value
by using valuation techniques. These include the
use of recent arm’s length transactions, discounted
cash flow analysis, making maximum use of market
inputs and relying as little as possible on entity-
specific inputs option pricing models.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Financial assets (Continued)

2.11

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date
whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. In
the case of equity securities classified as available
for sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of the security below its cost is considered
as an indicator that the securities are impaired. If
any such evidence exists for available-for-sale
financial assets,
measured as the difference between the acquisition
cost and the current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that financial asset previously recognised
in the income statement, is removed from equity
and recognised in the income statement.
Impairment losses recognised in the income
statement on equity instruments are not reversed

the cumulative loss which is

through the income statement.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the first-
in, first-out basis, comprising materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of all
production overhead expenditure. Net realisable
value is determined on the basis of anticipated
sales proceeds less estimated selling expenses.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 % 3R 2= MY EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially
at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less provision for impairment. A provision for
impairment of trade and other receivables is
established when there is objective evidence that
the Group will not be able to collect all amounts
due according to the original terms of receivables.
The amount of the provision is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the original effective interest rate.
The amount of the provision is recognised in the
income statement. The carrying amount of the
assets is reduced through the use of an allowance
account, and the amount of the loss is recognised
in the income statement within selling and
marketing costs. When a trade receivable is
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account for trade receivables. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited
against selling and marketing costs in the income
statement.

2.13 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand,
deposits held at call and bank overdrafts. Bank
overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current
liabilities on the balance sheet.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.14 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.15 Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

2.16 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Transaction costs
are incremental costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial
asset or financial liability. Borrowings are
subsequently stated at amortised cost where any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in
the income statement over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months
after the balance sheet date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 % 3R 2= MY EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.17 Current and deferred income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Company and its subsidiaries and
associates operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken
in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation
and establishes provisions where appropriate on
the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the
tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. Deferred income tax is determined
using taxation rates that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the balance sheet date
and are expected to apply when the related
deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred income
tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.17 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries
and associate, except where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is controlled
by the Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

2.18 Employee benefits
(i) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they are accrued to
employees. A provision is made for the
estimated liability for annual leave as a result
of services rendered by employees up to the
balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the
time of leave.

(ii) Pension obligations

The Group principally participates in defined
contributions plans and pays contributions to
publicly or privately administered pension plans
on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis.
The Group has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expenses when they are due and if
applicable, are reduced by contributions
forfeited by those employees who leave the
scheme or the plan prior to vesting fully in
the contributions.

Ik EE

2 FEENBREBE (&)

217 EMRBEFRFRE ()

EIEFTIS TR B 1 A) R e 2
A Tﬁizﬁﬁﬁjﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁéﬁ'
BERERNEE R AZES TR E
RyBOBHE MEREREAE
A] I8 5% 2R AT RE T & B m A R
S

218 ERRF
(i) ESHEEZ
BEEFHRZERINF
RET TRERER T AW
R-EREERELHEH
FEREZ RBE L FR
BErREI &G

BEZHRBREREDZR
NCUSRI AR

(i) BRLEMF
AEBTZELHEFTHEMHEN
8l WigR R Hl & 4
S EREERAXITA
MfiLﬁié?rilJ%lﬁ{ﬁ

Ko T TH ARG NEEH
ﬂ}ﬁ—*/FZSEHEE f#t

RN EBNERAEER
%$'Thﬁﬁﬁﬁ%%§i
ZEREZHRAELZ
&l RIFT A E 2 KA
KB e

BEZRBRAR o 2007 FE5HS

93



94

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ik E e

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.18 Employee benefits (Continued)

(iii)

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-
based compensation plan. The fair value of
the employee services received in exchange
for the grant of the options is recognised as
an expense. The total amount to be expensed
over the vesting period is determined by
reference to the fair value of the options
granted, excluding the impact of any non-
market vesting conditions. Non-market vesting
conditions are included in assumptions about
the number of options that are expected to
vest. At each balance sheet date, the entity
revises its estimates of the number of options
that are expected to vest. It recognises the
impact of the revision of original estimates, if
any, in the income statement with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.

The proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited to
share capital (nominal value) and share
premium when the options are exercised.

Carry Wealth Holdings Limited e Annual Report 2007

2 FEENBREBE (&)

218 EEWEH ()
(iii) YRG5 5 E# 2 KB

AREBEFE—TAUERS
B AR AD B AR 2 R
A& B IR BB A T iR
HBEBRB AR EER
R e AR 5B HHIE
XHZ BB ERET
BREZAREET IE
PR R AT AR SETH 5 57 B 16k
HzwE -BREANEB
BB ARESEIF
M5B GR - REEE
R EREIEHNRE
ZBREE A EF]
RG22 E (W0AE)
UL R R W R I HE R A
o2 AHER

E WA 1FSRIBRE R B %
MR 5 Ak AR T 10 s S
EITERTARK (2@
B) Ry as(Ee



2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.18 Employee benefits (Continued)

(iv) Termination benefits

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
% 3R 2= MY aE

2 FEENBREBE (&)

218 EEWEH ()
(iv) fEIEW &

Termination benefits are payable when
employment is terminated by the Group before
the normal retirement date, or whenever an
employee accepts voluntary redundancy in
exchange for these benefits. The Group
recognises termination benefits when it is
demonstrably committed to either: terminating
the employment of current employees
according to a detailed formal plan without
possibility of withdrawal; or providing
termination benefits as a result of an offer
made to encourage voluntary redundancy.
Benefits falling due more than 12 months after
balance sheet date are discounted to present
value.

REMEEAEERLES
BRINBE AT EEA &
EREEXBRERIAR
Bt 5 48 A B SO o AN &2
[ 72 A] 5 BR A0 T AGH B R
REFEEME: RIE—HF
AOEAGEIRIERAR
B EE M MR A B # Al
B RERREL—HEBY
VAZ B B FEIE B B2 (LAY
RREME - EEEHRIE
B1218 A AR A AL IR
RBEE-

2.19 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal and constructive obligation as a result
of past events, it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made.

2.20 Revenue recognition

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised on
the transfer of risks and rewards of ownership,
which generally coincides with the time when

shipment is made.

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion
basis, taking into account the principal amounts
outstanding and using the effective interest

method.

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis

over the lease period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 % 3R 2= MY EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESHHEREE (#)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.21 Leases (as the lessee)

221 g (6BEBA)
BE 2 NER D R K B3R B

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks

and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor
are classified as operating leases. Payments made
under operating leases, net of any incentives
received from the lessor, are expensed in the

HMARBZHE HREAK
EHE-HERRAIFZ2EE
HERBEMBREBARNGT
ZEREERR REEHAMNU

income statement on a straight-line basis over the BE/REEWMAREPZH-
lease period.

2.22 Dividend distribution 2.22 g R ik
Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders DIETARABIREZRERA

REIBCRALAE 2 SRR AN E
MBHmikTHERARAE:

is recognised as a liability in the Group’s financial
statements in the year in which the dividends are
approved by the Company’s shareholders.

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

3 MERRER
3.1 MBERBRER

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of AEBEREEHEREESHM
financial risks namely credit risk, foreign exchange J—Hﬁi BIEEERR - INER
risk, interest rate risk, liquidity risk and price risk. o MR RENE & R A
The Group’s overall risk management programme {ET&J—WA AEEZEERR
focuses on minimising potential adverse effect of EEEIETPREETEARR
these risks on the Group’s financial performance. ZUAEBEMBRRATERZ

=, Bz o
(a) Credit risk (a) FERRE
Credit risk of the Group mainly arises from REBEZEERBEZR
cash and cash equivalents and deposits with BRekREEMBEEE

HIRIT R M EHBOTTR
ARkAEFEENEES

banks and financial institutions, as well as
credit exposures to customers such as trade

receivables. The carrying amount of these BIEE SR RIE L FE
balances in the balance sheet represents the REEBBERANZRIELZ
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in EEE@TE$EI7EE§‘£%$
relation to its financial assets. BEZE=EERR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

For banks and financial institutions, only
independently rated parties with a minimum
rating of ‘A’ are accepted. Management does
not expect any losses from non-performance
by these banks and financial institutions as

they have no default history in the past.

The credit quality of the customers is assessed
based on its financial position, past experience
and other factors. The Group has policies in
place to ensure that sales of products are
made to customers with appropriate credit
histories.

The major trade debtors have no history of
default in recent years. The Group performs
periodic credit evaluations of its customers.
The Group's historical experience in collection
of trade and other receivables falls within the
recorded allowances and management is of
the opinion that provision for uncollectible
receivables is not necessary.

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates internationally and it has
factories and offices in Hong Kong, Indonesia,
El Salvador, Lesotho and Mainland China.
Operating expenses of the Group are primarily
denominated in Hong Kong dollar, Indonesia
Rupiah, Salvadoran Colone, South African
Rand, Renminbi and some in United States
dollar. Thus, it is exposed to foreign exchange
risk arising from currency exposures.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

However, since the Group’s sales are principally
denominated in United States dollar,
management considers that the foreign
exchange risk arises primarily from United
States dollar. Since Hong Kong dollar and
Salvadoran Colone are pegged to United
States dollar, the Group does not expect to
be exposed to relevant currency risks from
these currencies in the near term.

For Indonesia Rupiah, South African Rand and
Renminbi, at 31st December, 2007, if United
States dollar had strengthened/weakened by
5% against these currencies with all other
variables held constant, the net assets at the
year end would have been HK$1,441,000/
HK$1,441,000, HK$562,000/HK$562,000 and
HK$371,000/HK$371,000 (2006: HK$460,000/
HK$460,000, HK$1,386,000/HK$1,386,000
and HK$2,748,000/HK$2,748,000) higher/
lower, respectively, mainly as a result of
foreign exchange gains/losses on translation
of these foreign operations.

The management closely monitors the
fluctuation of other currencies and may
consider entering into foreign forward
exchange contracts from time to time so as
to better manage these foreign exchange
exposures, when required.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Interest rate risk

As the Group has no significant interest-
bearing assets, the Group’s income and
operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest
rates. The Group’s interest-rate risk arises from
bank borrowings. As at 31st December, 2007,
borrowings were primarily at floating rates.
The Group generally has not used interest rate
swaps to hedge its exposure to interest rate
risk. The Group regularly seeks out the most
favorable interest rates available for its bank
borrowings.

As 31st December, 2007, if interest rates on
United States dollar-denominated borrowings
and Hong Kong dollar-denominated
borrowings have been 10 basis point higher/
lower with all other variables held constant,
profit for the year would have been
HK$106,000 (2006: HK$94,000) and
HK$106,000 (2006: HK$94,000) lower/higher,
respectively, mainly as a result of higher/lower
interest expenses on floating rate borrowings.

Liquidity risk

The Group has adequate cash and has
maintained adequate credit facilities for its
operating requirement. Management monitors
rolling forecasts of the Group’s liquidity reserve
and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of
expected cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 % 3R 2= MY EE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(d) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings
based on the remaining period at the balance
sheet to the contractual maturity date.
Balances due within 12 months equal their
carrying balances, as the impact of discounting
is not significant.

3 MEERRER (&)

3.1 MBRARER (&)

(d)

mBEZmEE (F)

TRBETRAEENTEE
& R 2 8 R
REHEERERBESR
#IZIER A BRI SR EARE 1T
DT BmRBBENTZED
R E+ = @A R
HWERESENERT
B

Between Between

Within
1 year 2

1 and 2 and
years 5 years Total

—fR —EMFA —ELFR ait
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TATL TATL TET TETL

Bank borrowings BITER

Trade and other payables BOREMENKE

At 31st December, 2006 RZBEARF
+ZA=+-H

Bank borrowings BITER

Trade and other payables BOREMENKE

Derivative financial instruments #7442 ® T A

At 31st December, 2007 R-ZBELHE
t=ZA=t-H
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68,405 15,550 9,700 93,655
171,362 - - 171,362
239,767 15,550 9,700 265,017

72,773 12,916 20,389 106,078
128,333 = - 128,333
12,617 = = 12,617
213,723 12,916 20,389 247,028



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(e) Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities price
risk because the investments held by the
Group are linked to a basket of listed
securities. The Group diversifies its portfolio
in order to manage the price risk arising from
these investments.

At 31st December, 2007, if the price of the
underlying listed securities has increased/
decreased by 5% with all other variables held
constant, the Group’s profit for the year would
have increased/decreased by HK$2,483,000/
HK$2,694,000 (2006: Nil) as a result of fair
value gains/losses on the investments.

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are
to safequard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern in order to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends
paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders,
issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Ik EE

3 MEERRER (&)

3.1 MBRARER (&)

(e) E#EE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 % 3R 2= MY EE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation

The fair value of financial instruments traded in
active markets such as publicly traded securities
and available-for-sale securities, is based on quoted
market prices at balance sheet date. The quoted
market price used for financial assets held by the
group is the current bid price.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market is determined by using
valuation techniques. The Group uses a variety of
methods and makes assumptions that are based
on market conditions existing at each balance sheet
date. Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for
similar instruments are used for financial assets and
financial liabilities. The fair value of forward foreign
exchange contracts is determined using quoted
forward exchange rates at the balance sheet date.

The carrying value less impairment provision of
trade receivables and payables are a reasonable
approximation of their fair values. The fair value of
financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is
estimated by discounting the future contractual
cash flows at the current market interest rate that
is available to the Group for similar financial
instruments.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the
related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year
are discussed below.

(a) Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group reviews annually whether goodwill
has suffered any impairment in accordance
with the accounting policy stated in Note 2.8.
The recoverable amounts of cash-generating
units have been determined based on value-
in-use calculations.

(b) Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in a
number of jurisdictions. Significant judgement
is required in determining the provision for
income taxes. The Group recognises liabilities
for anticipated tax audit issues based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be
due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax
provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.
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1 % 3R 2= MY EE

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (Continued)

(c) Fair value of derivatives and other
financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that
are not traded in an active market is
determined by using valuation techniques. The
Group uses its judgement to select a variety
of methods and make assumptions that are
mainly based on market conditions existing at
each balance sheet date.

REVENUES AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION

The Group is principally engaged in garment
manufacturing and trading. Revenues recognised during
the year are as follows:

MEEHEERAER (&)

41 MBEHEEMMEK ()

(c) /TETAREM2@MT
AzianfE
BEEERMZEENS
BMITAZAREBENAME
REE - NEBF A
EEMZER A UEE
BESEEERERNM
BB R AE R

W & B 3 88 8| #

AEBTERERNXRBHERE S
RERNERZ Wz T

2007 2006
—EELF —TITRF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FAT

Turnover -

Sale of garment products $HE KK E M
Other income H Uz A

Rental income e A

The Group’s turnover solely arises from garment
manufacturing and trading. The Group’s customers are
located in five main geographical areas namely United
States of America, Europe, Canada, Southeast Asia and
other countries, while, the Group’s business activities
are conducted predominantly in Hong Kong, Indonesia,
Lesotho, El Salvador and Mainland China.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

M |RME
REVENUES AND SEGMENT 5 sk oaEHE (8)
INFORMATION (Continued)
An analysis of the Group’s turnover and contribution to RAEERFRNRMMEDHE H 2 &
operating profit for the year by geographical segment FHEEREENER AT
is as follows:
Primary reporting format — geographical FERERX-BR_-_ZTLEER
segments by location of customers for 2007 FihESEE 5
United
States of Southeast Other
America Europe Canada Asia countries Group
ES= M mEX REE HtExR r&EH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
FHx FHx FHT FHx FHx FHx
Turnover ] 955,637 26,000 41,675 19,315 12,526 1,055,153
I I
Segment results DEEE 126,081 1,462 6,206 2,181 528 136,458
I N T D S
Unallocated rental income TReoBEZHEKA 1,708
Unallocated administrative expenses ~ TRED 8 2 1T FI X (58,689)
Operating profit e g R 79,477
Finance income BEMRA 6,730
Finance costs & B AR (6,637)
Share of profit of associates paklal: AN b 1,738
Profit before income tax bR P15 B4 31 81,308
Income tax expense 8B (27,228)
Profit for the year F &% F 54,080
I
Segment assets PHEE 91,097 3,585 3,225 8,878 1,245 108,030
Unallocated assets TRABEE 495,976
Total assets BEE 604,006
I
Unallocated liabilities TEAB AR 270,048
I
Capital expenditure BEARAY 70,293
Depreciation e 17,414
Amortisation # i 766
I

BERERBEBRDA o 2007 FEHE

105



106

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 7% 2% Bt

REVENUES AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (Continued)

Primary reporting format - geographical

5 W@mkaBEH (K)

FERERA-B-STREEFE

segments by location of customers for 2006 FitESHa %
United
States of Southeast Other
America Europe Canada Asia  countries Group
E3E BUM nEXx REE HaMER rEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL FEL FEL FET FET FET
Turnover BEE 1,088,112 31,084 51,047 18,908 21,068 1,210,219
L& ;B & ;o __________§§ |
Segment results DHELE 130,390 1,661 5,959 560 459 139,029
I N T D S
Unallocated rental income Teen# B BA 1,432
Unallocated administrative expenses T 8E % # 2 7 BB X (55,142)
Operating profit e R 85,319
Finance income BEMRA 3,281
Finance costs BEKK (5,988)
Share of profit of associates paklah: AN b 4,839
Profit before income tax BR BT 15 B AT A 87,451
Income tax expense FrERmE (18,741)
Profit for the year FE A 68,710
I
Segment assets DEEE 85,955 11,483 4,059 11,662 3,218 116,377
Unallocated assets TN EBE 475,599
Total assets mEE 591,976
I
Unallocated liabilities Teen#zAaE 284,454
I
Capital expenditure BEARX 31,216
Depreciation E 15,493
Amortisation i 862
I
Unallocated administrative expenses represent corporate TeesE s THRAXELER
expenses, including other (losses)/gains. BIEEAM (BE) W
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REVENUES AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (Continued)

Primary reporting format - geographical segments

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
% 3R 2= MY aE

Wk SEBE# ()

FERERA -BEREBHEST

by location of assets R
Capital
Total assets expenditure
EE#AE BEXBX
2007 2007
—EELE ZETLE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR T
Hong Kong BB 236,063 4,965
Indonesia Hfe 165,583 658
Lesotho KR 23,994 1,279
El Salvador EREL%Z 21,414 78
Mainland China B K B 155,852 63,313
602,906 70,293
Unallocated assets Teen 2 BE 1,100 -
604,006 70,293
Capital
Total assets  expenditure
BE®E BARR X
2006 2006
—EERF ZEETREF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FET
Hong Kong BB 188,776 603
Indonesia ffe 228,722 5,069
Lesotho HRIE 32,696 214
El Salvador P& L% 38,886 578
Mainland China A B K Pz 101,796 24,752
590,876 31,216
Unallocated assets TN EE 1,100 -
591,976 31,216
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B 7% R R MY &
6 OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS - NET 6 Hfft(KH\) - B8#E
2007 2006
—EELE —TETRX
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Fair value gains on KEWMEZ A ENE
investment properties 6,000 -
Fair value gains/(losses) AL ECERMEE
realised on disposal of ERRAABERE (EB8)
available-for-sale
financial assets 392 (300)
Fair value (losses)/gains TTHEEMmIAZ
on derivative financial ARE(EE) ks
instruments:
Foreign forward R HSNE & 4
exchange contracts 130 356
Equity accumulators EanRETLA (11,525) -
Market linked instrument AR
with swap arrangement miZEE T A (1,092) -
(12,487) 356
Fair value gains/(losses) BEAnBEFABREZ
on financial assets TRIBEEZ
at fair value through AREREE (EE) !
profit or loss:
Listed equity securities EHRARE 5 5,409 -
Foreign currency linked HONEEN N 2 SRR IR
structured note 1,020 -
Market linked instruments BUIBKE MBS HBTH
with initial investments (2,993) -
3,436 -
Total other (losses)/gains — net Hith (B518) W= es— F8 (2,659) 56
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
% 3R 2= MY aE

EXPENSES BY NATURE 7 BUEHESHZAX

Operating profit is stated after crediting and charging KEBMNEFARMKR T
the following:
2007 2006
—EELF —TITRF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FAET
Raw materials used 8/ R 486,840 646,980
Changes in inventories of ERMEFEENMNGEEES
finished goods and work
in progress 39,741 (4,858)
Quota charges Aic 58 A 2 103 63
Depreciation of properties, ME-BEREETE
plant and equipment 17,414 15,493
Provision for impairment of R e R BB e
plant and machinery 8,261 -
Gain on disposal of properties, HEWME WEREE M=
plant and equipment (1,576) (278)
Amortisation 3y 766 862
Employee benefit expense BERAMAZ (TEEEEMSE)
(excluding directors’ (PffF5E14)
emoluments) (Note 14) 242,986 232,558
Operating lease rentals — KEHERS - T RETF
land and buildings 10,658 10,096
Auditors’ remuneration % R0 B & 2,034 1,932
Net exchange losses PE B 18 F 5 395 229
Others H th 167,103 223,311
Total cost of sales, HEKRA HERX
selling expenses and RATHF < 2%
administrative expenses 974,725 1,126,388
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B 7% R R MY &
8 FINANCE INCOME 8 WMEIWIA
2007 2006
HK$'000  HKS$'000
FER FAT
Finance income on RERITERZBE R A
short-term bank deposits 5,398 3,281
Finance income from MEHWTAZRERA
market linked instruments 1,332 -
6,730 3,281
9 FINANCE COSTS 9 MBERF
Finance costs represent interest expenses paid for bank B & P AN 1R T?E/,\E’\Eiiﬁﬂi%ﬂg £
borrowings and overdrafts which are wholly repayable LRITERREBEZIZINZHER
within five years. X °
10 INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10 FRiBIRAX
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of BEAEMNBHIREF NG ERT
17.5% (2006: 17.5%) on the estimated assessable profit SR IR E1T7 5% (ZEENE
for the year. Income tax on overseas profits has been 17.5%) st B £ B 5Na M 2 Frig
calculated on the estimated assessable profit for the IR F AT ERT R A - 1%
year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the countries $%@2‘“%¥5‘%Fﬁﬁl%zfﬁﬁm
in which the Group operates. K E
The amount of income tax charged to the consolidated HMEHRalABRKZMEHHE
income statement represents: V=%
2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FAT
Current income tax B HIRTE M
- Hong Kong profits tax —HABENEB 16,846 16,694
— Overseas income tax — BHNFIE R 6,297 2,828
Under-provision in prior years NEFEREDE 268 -
Deferred income tax (Note 30) EERTSH (H3E30) 3,817 (781)
Income tax expense Fr 13 B 5 2 27,228 18,741
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

The tax on the Group’s profit before income tax differs
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the
taxation rate of Hong Kong is as follows:

Ik EE

10 FRiSIRBAIST (#8)

REERBAGEMNNOHEEEKAS
BRMERATEZIERSENERIT
T

2007 2006
—EBELE —TERF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Profit before income tax BR PRS2 A& A1 81,308 87,451
Calculated at tax rate B EN17.5%
of 17.5% (2006: 17.5%) (ZZEZERF:175%) & 14,230 15,304
Effect of different taxation rates HEMBERZTRK X2
in other countries (2,095) 438
Income not subject to tax BARD 2 WA (3,560) (2,437)
Expenses not deductible for tax ~ BLERFL M E T AT 2 4,507 5,252
Unrecognised deferred tax assets = #3230 1§ 8 & & 11,469 184
Utilisation of previously AN RER TG EE
unrecognised tax losses (2,580) -
PRC income tax exempted BEFECHRRZFPEFEH
in previous years 3,262 -
Under provision in prior years N FERETE 268 -
Others Hi 1,727 -
Income tax expense FT1S T H X 27,228 18,741

During the year, Dongguan Guoxing Garment Limited
("Guoxing"), a subsidiary engaged in sample making,
was closed and the sample making processes are moved
to another factory located in Heshan City, Guangdong
Province. Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations
in Mainland China, Guoxing is entitled to an exemption
from the PRC enterprises income tax for the two years
commencing from its first profit-making year and
thereafter, it is entitled to 50% relief from the PRC
enterprise income tax for the following three years.
However, since Guoxing has operated for less than ten
years, it is required to pay the PRC enterprise income
tax exempted for the prior years amounting to
approximately HK$3,262,000 when it is closed.

FAREHRHEGRIMBLAAR
SEEEKREARAR ([HE])E
AR MBERRZ TFEEEZ
H— AR EERES LT 2K
FoREBEHBEAREZBBER X
BOBEEREEESENFELES
MEERPBRIPBELEMRSH
M BE& = F Al IR - B R X E
EEMBHR-AM AREEZED
RTF HEREBHABHEIBE
FRECERRZTBEMEMEHRLG
3,262,000/ JT °
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11 PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

12

The profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
is dealt with in the financial statements of the Company
to the extent of profit of approximately HK$24,000,000
(2006: HK$36,500,000).

EARNINGS PER SHARE

(i)

Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing
the profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue during the year.

11

12

FATIZESREAREGS
F

FARRBHBHER ZERIZTEA
JE 15 5% F 49 & 24,000,0005 7T (=
T E ;X4 136,500,000 7T) ©

BEREN
(i) BE#

FRER AR RE AR A
BsRAAREENBRAFAD
AT B 2 DN F 3 BEt

s
= o
>t

2007 2006
—EELE —TITRF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHETT
Profit attributable to equity ZAAQRIEZEFAE ARG F
holders of the Company 48,950 68,116
Weighted average number of B Z#1TE @R 2
ordinary shares niEFEHE (FR)
in issue (thousands) 365,245 360,731
Basic earnings per share BREARRN (FRRAEW)
(HK cents per share) 13.40 18.88
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12 EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)

(ii)

Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting
the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares. The Company has one
category of dilutive potential ordinary shares that
is share options. For the share options, a calculation
is done to determine the number of shares that
could have been acquired at fair value (determined
as the average annual market share price of the
Company’s shares) based on the monetary value of
the subscription rights attached to outstanding
share options. The number of shares calculated as
above is compared with the number of shares that
would have been issued assuming the exercise of
the share options.

Ik EE

12 SREF (&)

(ii)

E

BREERMNRERRABE
BHEEBEERRCSEBRNBR
TR ABREERMNEFSR
AE-ARRBA-REEHSE
1 A B A - S B AR
B ARARERBEHRITER
PRHEFTH 2 REBREBESE
NEERAAE (BAREK
D FHERTSREME)
A A Z B 8B A £
BT BOBERA HEBRZ
FRPERTERBEHTZ
Befn 8B e

2007 2006
—EELtE —TTRF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FAT
Profit attributable to equity AN G HEZEFHE A EL & F
holders of the Company 48,950 68,116
Weighted average number B 31T & @K~
of ordinary shares nwEFE 8 (FRR)
in issue (thousands) 365,245 360,731
Adjustments for BREZHAE (TKR)
share options (thousands) 4,710 3,395
Weighted average number SR #E R F| 2 L @A
of ordinary shares ZMEFHE (TR
for diluted earnings
per share (thousands) 369,955 364,126
Diluted earnings per share SR EEZF (FRBEN)
(HK cents per share) 13.23 18.71
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13 DIVIDENDS 13 K2
2007 2006
—EELtE —_ZTTAF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERT FET
Interim dividend paid of 3.0 FHIREEBREEAR3.0B L
HK cents (2006: 3.0 HK cents) (ZZ2ZTRF:3.0811)
per ordinary share 11,009 10,830
Proposed final dividend of 5.0 BOR N REARR B
HK cents (2006: 6.0 HK cents) B E @ AR 5.0
per ordinary share (ZZZRF:6.081l) 18,398 21,663
29,407 32,493

14 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE
(EXCLUDING DIRECTORS’

14 BRBRHRAXZ (FEEBESE
i & )

EMOLUMENTS)
2007 2006
—EBEELE —ZTEXEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx F&TT
Wages and salaries Fekie 224,406 224,192
Termination benefits i & f (8 12,180 1,808
Pension costs RIKE A 6,400 6,558
242,986 232,558
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE
(EXCLUDING DIRECTORS’
EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)

Forfeited contributions totaling HK$149,000 (2006:
HK$184,000) were utilised during the year. There is no
remaining balance available at the year end to reduce
future contributions (2006: HK$62,000).

There is no contribution payable at the year end (2006:

Nil).

The Group operates/participates the following defined
contribution plans:

(i)

A defined contribution scheme for employees in
Hong Kong, under which the Group and its
employees each contributes 5% of the employees’
salaries. The forfeited contributions made by the
Group and the related accrued interest are used to
reduce the Group's future employer’s contribution.
The assets of the scheme are held separately from
those of the Group’s in independent trustee-
administered fund.

The Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) for employees in Hong Kong, under
which the Group and its employee each makes
monthly contribution to the scheme at 5% of the
gualifying earnings of the employee, subject to a
monthly cap of HK$1,000.

Ik EE

14 BREBRHRAX (FEEBESE

M) (&)

FRNEHTHZ2ERRERE L
149,000 7T (ZZF /X : 184,000
BIL) RFEFELESKT&EH#H (ZF
TN 162,000 7T) Al B) A EHBR
RIRAE Ko

RERLEEMNER (ZFTRE:
) TREE-

SEEST/

\
W
\|

/|
Z
vl
)
%
<
St
il
+

By

BEERE MK 2 ARG
B AKEREEBSHASNMNE
BEH S 5% ERRR-AEE
Bz R RAREEFEE
AERIAEBRAK 2 EEH®
RoARFEIZEERAEER
BESA YRBABILZTEA
EBESER-

—
~

(i) AEBREMIZZEHEQTE
err8l ([BEeTE]) B
AEBRERBHAKREER
ABZ5%EGAER S A
3R EE PR A 1,000 T 0
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14 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE
(EXCLUDING DIRECTORS’
EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)

(iii) The Group’s subsidiaries do not operate any pension
plan in Indonesia. However, according to the labor
law in Indonesia, the employer is required to pay
retirement benefits to the employees upon their
retirement and the retirement benefits are
calculated based on the final monthly basic salary
and the years of service. The latest actuarial
valuation of the plan was performed by a
professionally qualified independent actuarial firm,
as at 31st December, 2007, using the “projected
unit credit” method.

(iv) The Group’'s subsidiaries in Mainland China
contribute approximately 10% of the basic salary
of their employees to retirement schemes operated
by municipal governments. Other than the
mandatory contributions, the Group has no further
obligations for the actual pension payments or any
post retirement benefits. The retirement schemes
are responsible for the entire pension obligations
payable to retired employees.

(v) The Group’s subsidiary in El Salvador operates
defined contribution plan, under which the Group’s
subsidiary and employees contribute to a pensions
fund administered by a specialised institution
authorised by the Government of El Salvador, which
according to the Saving System for Pensions Law,
is responsible for the pension’s payment and other
benefits to employees.
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MBEEEEIHEXAERE
MIEERBNATAEE B
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7 % 2% B =
15 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE - 15 BERFIAXZ-EERER
DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EEARZH&
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEHM&
The remuneration of every Director for the year HE_ETE+FT+A=1T—
ended 31st December, 2007 is set out below: HEFESRES2MedEHD
T
Employer's
contribution
Discretionary Other to the MPF
Name of Director Fees Salary bonuses Benefits scheme Total
g N2
AR
BEpg we W 0 BERe HeEN  EIHXR &t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER TER

Mr Rusli Hendrawan Rusli Hendrawan 5t £ 100 2,968 1,295 86 112 4,561
Mr Lee Sheng Kuang, James ThHrEE 100 2,134 1,295 2,316 95 5,940
Mr Oey Tjie Ho FEREE 100 797 280 20 a1 1,238
Mr Tang Chak Lam, Charlie BERELE 100 1,395 630 30 69 2,224
Mr Cheung Kwok Ming REIA K4 150 - - - - 150
Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry DHERE 180 - - - - 180
Mr Lau Siu Ki, Kevin ARELE 180 - - - - 180
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 7% 2% Bt

15 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE -
DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR

MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

The remuneration of every Director for the year

ended 31st December, 2006 is set out below:

15 RRRFRAX-EERER
TEARZH® (#)

(a) EEME (M)

BE-TTAET-A=1—
BIEEEEEFZMETIHE

T

Employer's

contribution

Discretionary Other  to the MPF
Name of Director Fees Salary bonuses Benefits scheme Total

58 5l

RETEE
BEEnA we FH  mERe  HMREM  EXHFX CES
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TET TEL
Mr Rusli Hendrawan Rusli Hendrawan %t & 100 2,878 1,850 86 112 5,026
Mr Lee Sheng Kuang, James FBEREE 100 2,494 1,850 1,956 113 6,513
Mr Oey Tjie Ho BEEMEE 100 797 400 3 41 1,341
Mr Tang Chak Lam, Charlie BEREE 100 1,395 900 11 69 2,475
Mr Cheung Kwok Ming REIR S A 150 - - - - 150
Mr Kwok Lam Kwong, Larry BB E 180 - - - - 180
Mr Lau Siu Ki, Kevin BREEE 180 - - - - 180

Other benefits include leave pay, share option and

housing allowances.

During the year, no director has waived any of

their emoluments (2006: Nil).
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15 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE -
DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ik EE

15 RRRFRAX-EERER
TEARZH® (#)

(b) ABES

FEMAL

The five individuals whose emoluments were the
highest in the Group include three (2006: four)
directors whose emoluments are reflected in the
analysis presented above. The emoluments payable
to the remaining two (2006: one) individuals during

AEBzhERERFMALE
R=% (22T F: 08 =&
FEEZHEE R EXZT
Z MR R F AR T
TRE(ZZEZRF: —8) A

the year are as follows: TZBEAT:
2007 2006
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Basic salaries, housing EXFe FEZEAM
allowances, other HE 2R EYH =S
allowances and
benefits-in-kind 3,353 2,000
Contributions to BB ® T A K
the MPF scheme 84 12
3,437 2,012

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

MesEEmT:

Number of individuals

A
2007 2006
—EELE —ZTTXRF
Emolument bands B & &5 &
HK$1,000,000 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,000 7t — 1,500,000/% 7T 1 -
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001/ 7t — 2,500,000/ JT 1 1
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16 GOODWILL

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating
units (“CGUs") identified according to the country of
operation and it is allocated to the manufacturing
operation in El Salvador.

The recoverable amount of CGU is determined based
on value-in-use calculations. These calculations used cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by management covering a five-year period.

Key assumptions used for value-in-use calculation:

16 W&

EMEDNREEMERRSEEASE
EReELEEN([ReEE S
il) BN BEZEERLS 2EE
ER X

HeEASM KB SEERG
Mﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁrﬁi(’ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁﬁf
EREEMZNAFTENREEME
BIHIREREFTE -
AEFRECEERRK:

Manufacturing

L E

%

BOL

Gross profit margin E R x 21

Growth rate # R & 3

Discount rate P x 7
Notes: M eE:

(@) Management determined budgeted gross profit margin based
on past performance and its expectations for the market
development.

(b)  The growth rate applied is consistent with the forecasts for
the industry.

(c)  The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflect risks relating to
the relevant segment.

The management believes that any reasonably
foreseeable change in any of the above key assumptions
would not cause the aggregate carrying amount of
goodwill to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17 PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Ik EE

17 DE - BERKRE

Group
r5E
Buildings
BF
Furniture,
office
equipment
Held in Leasehold Plant and Construction
Mainland Held in Heldin  improve- and motor in
China  Indonesia Lesotho ments machinery vehicles  progress Total
S
WAE
ReE RREHR BEXE B
AERE ROEESF BE  HEZE R#E kAE HBIE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TEx FEx FET TEx FER FET TEx
Year ended 31st December, 2007 BE-BTtE
TZAZ+-BLEE
Opening net book amount BOEEFE - 28,158 7,126 1,888 47,555 8,616 14,983 108,326
Additions NE - - - 19,627 12,136 19,642 18,888 70,293
Transfer &7 33,871 - - - - - (33,871) -
Disposals HE - - - (86) (1,973) (495) - (2,554)
Depreciation il (510) (2,112) (554) (1,383) (8,221) (4,634) - (17,414)
Impairment RE - - - - (8,261) - = (8,261)
Revaluation surplus EffRH - 511 - - - - - 511
Exchange differences EXEE 1,379 (1,226) - 803 (948) 1,232 - 1,240
Closing net book amount HREEEE 34,740 25,331 6,572 20,849 40,288 24,361 - 152,141
At 31st December, 2007 R=28LE
t=A=t-8
Cost or valuation KA EE 34,740 25,331 6,572 25,081 69,307 46,808 - 207,839
Accumulated depreciation ZiHE - - - (4,232) (29,019)  (22,447) = (55,698)
Net book amount FEFE 34,740 25,331 6,572 20,849 40,288 24,361 - 152,141
I I I I I I I I
Year ended 31st December, 2006 HE-2ERE
TZAZ+-BLFE
Opening net book amount HNRHEFE - 31,102 7,617 3,194 46,117 7,897 - 95,927
Additions NE - - - 79 4,732 4,199 14,983 23,993
Disposals e - - - - (93) (102) - (195)
Depreciation bl - (2,270) (491) (1,389) (7,748) (3,595) - (15,493)
Revaluation surplus EffRH - 566 - - - - - 566
Exchange differences EXEE - (1,240) - 4 4,547 217 - 3,528
Closing net book amount HREEEE - 28,158 7,126 1,888 47,555 8,616 14,983 108,326
At 31st December, 2006 RZ2ERE
t=A=t-8
Cost or valuation KA EE - 28,158 7,126 5,238 61,204 30,446 14,983 147,155
Accumulated depreciation ZiHE - - - (3,350) (13,649) (21,830) - (38,829)
Net book amount REFE - 28,158 7,126 1,888 47,555 8,616 14,983 108,326
I I I I I I I I
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17 PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17 R -BER®RME (])

(Continued)

The Group’s buildings were revalued at 31st December,
2007. Valuations were made on the open market value
basis and were carried out by:

(i) Vigers Appraisal and Consulting Limited, an
independent qualified surveyor in Hong Kong;

(i) PT VPC Hagai Sejahtera, an independent qualified
surveyor in Indonesia; and

(iii) Japie Van Blerk, an independent qualified surveyor
in Lesotho.

The revaluation surplus net of applicable deferred income
taxes was credited to fixed assets revaluation reserve in
shareholders’ equity.

Depreciation of approximately HK$10,081,000 (2006:
HK$9,351,000) has been expensed to cost of goods
sold, approximately HK$537,000 (2006: HK$638,000)
has been expensed to selling expenses and
HK$6,796,000 (2006: HK$5,504,000) has been expensed
to administrative expenses.

If buildings were stated on the historical cost basis, the
amounts would be as follows:

AEEBFER-_TZELFET A
=t+t—HREFHE-BELRER
FMBEER N&HETT:

(i) EBHEEMEBEEERAA
(BERBILAERBER)

(i) PT VPC Hagai Sejahtera (ENfE
BUAEARAEM) K&

(i) Japie Van Blerk GRRIE B A
BHBIERD) o

B AANRERREMSHR I
ABREm T ZEEEESE MG M
e

TEEDANEETFTEKR AR H
#710,081,0008 7T (=T ZT X F -
9,351,000 70) R E R X X 84
#9537,0008 T (Z & T X F:
638,000 L) MR 1T B A X X 8
#76,796,0008 L (Z T Z N F -
5,504,000/ 7T ) °

WIE S TR E S B ARSI K 5 5
m

2007 2006

ZBELFE —ZTETX
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Cost B AR 161,071 106,435
Accumulated depreciation 25 E (98,043) (74,613)
Net book amount M FE 63,028 31,822
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Bt 75 ¥R AR MY R
17 PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17 X - BERDMW ()
(Continued)
The analysis of the cost or valuation at 31st December, FMEER-_ZEZERF+A="+
2006 of the above assets is as follows: —BZRARFEHESTEOT:
Buildings
gF
Furniture,
office
equipment
Held in Leasehold Plant and Construction
Mainland Held in Held in improve- and motor in
China  Indonesia Lesotho ments  machinery vehicles progress Total
R AR REE  REZRKE BE GA-BLE
A 2] BE  HMERE [BEREER RERAE LRI @i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T FEL FER T FEL FEx TR FEL
At cost BEA - - - 5,238 61,204 30,446 14,983 111,871
At 2006 valuation RZZZ ERE - 28,158 7,126 - - - - 35,284
- 28,158 7,126 5,238 61,204 30,446 14,983 147,155
I I I I I I I I
The analysis of the cost or valuation at 31st December, FREER-_ZTETLF+HA="1
2007 of the above assets is as follows: —BZERAREESTEOT:
Buildings
gF
Furniture,
office
equipment
Held in Leasehold Plant and Construction
Mainland Held in Heldin  improve- and motor in
China  Indonesia Lesotho ments machinery vehicles  progress Total
RAERKE ROE  REER BE GA-BAZ
BE BE BE HE#E REREE RERRE  HRIE @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET TR TER TET TR TER TET
At cost BARA - - - 25,081 69,307 46,308 - 141,19
At 2007 valuation RIZBLEMRE 34,740 25,331 6,572 - - - - 66,643

34,740 25,331 6,572 25,081 69,307 46,808 - 207,839
S S S . S S S E—
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17 PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Net book value of buildings is analysed as follows:

17 ME-BEREMW ()

BFZEREFESHTWT:

2007 2006
—BBLE —TTAA
HK$’000 HK$'000

THET FHETT
Outside Hong Kong, held on: REBAINEA

— Leases of between — A FEN F10E50F
10 to 50 years 60,071 28,158
— Leases of less than 10 years —HHFHLR105F 6,572 7,126
66,643 35,284

18 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 18 EYE

2007 2006
—E2tE —TTAF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FHIT
Beginning of the year F4 22,300 22,300
Fair value gains NhEZ W= 6,000 -
End of the year FR 28,300 22,300

The investment properties were revalued at 31st
December, 2007 by an independent valuer, Vigers
Appraisal and Consulting Limited. Valuations were based
on current prices in an active market for all properties.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% R R Y &
18 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 18 #|BEMYMXE (8]8)
The Group’s interests in the investment properties at REBRUREFEIRZIKREY
their net book values are analysed as follows: RSN T:
2007 2006

—EELFE —_TTRF
HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FHETT
In Hong Kong, held on: REEEH:
— Leases of between — A FEN F10E50F
10 to 50 years 28,300 22,300
Investment properties of the Group have been pledged ZANES IZ&%{W%E %Tfﬁﬁ HER
as securities for the Group's secured bank borrowings. REEERFRITERZERM-
The Group leases out the investment properties under REBMHEEUKEHEEZREYD
operating leases, for an initial period of three years. FUNAHR=F-REE_TZTL
During the year ended 31st December, 2007, the gross F+A=1T—RBLEFE - KEY
rental income from investment properties amounted to X2 HSWAETEL 1,654,000
approximately HK$ 1,654,000 (2006: HK$1,379,000). As ﬁ (: TENF 11,379,000 7T) ©
at 31st December, 2007, the Group’s future rental N ETLFTHA=1+—H 'K
income under non-cancellable operating leases is as %ITT%H%?&% HE T2 ARKM
follows: SWALT:
2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FHETT
Not later than one year —F A 965 1,654
Later than one year and —FHRBTERREF
not later than five years - 965
965 2,619
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19 LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE
RIGHTS

The Group’s interests in leasehold land and land use
rights represent prepaid operating lease payments and

19 HETHR T HERE

REBREEL N T EREZ
afRBENEEHETE HIK

their net book values are analysed as follows: EFEITWNT:
2007 2006
HK$'000  HK$'000
TERT FET
In Mainland China held on: R KRERS:
— Leases of between —HAOFEHN F10E50F
10 to 50 years 11,077 -
In Indonesia held on: RENE#HH:
— Leases of between —HAOFEHN F10E50F
10 to 50 years 775 1,755
— Leases of less than 10 years —HAFHELR10F 694 480
12,546 2,235
2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FET
Beginning of the year F 4 2,235 3,097
Additions NBE 11,077 -
Amortisation of prepaid MIEEENKEHEENRE
operating lease payments (766) (862)
End of the year FR 12,546 2,235

As at 31st December, 2007, the Group has not yet
obtained the formal land use right relating to the piece
of land located in Mainland China.
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20 NON-CURRENT DEPOSITS

21

22

As at 31st December,

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2006, non-current deposits

represented deposits paid for the land use right for the
piece of land in Mainland China as mentioned in Note

19.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

20 EnENESE

Ik EE

RZEERNF+_A=+—H" 3
MBI IE MR 19FT L B B —1E

{37 70 R B R B ) 348
MR 2EE

2 E R

21 BB ARIZRE

Company
AAH
2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FH&E T
Costs, unlisted shares K- 3E ETR RS 165,938 166,346
Details of principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 36 FEMBARIZFHEERSENER
to the financial statements. M 5E36°
INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 22 REREBELAFIZES
2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FH&E T
Beginning of the year F4 47,036 38,055
Addition NE - 3,000
Share of profit S5 8 F 1,738 4,839
Disposal & (2,928) -
Dividend income &% B U A (2,899) -
Exchange difference PE X ZE2E 3,207 1,142
End of the year FR 46,154 47,036
Amount due from an associate  Bf& AR R K 3,000 -
49,154 47,036
EZEREBER AT o 2007 FE0E
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23

22 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 22 MBELAFZES (18)
The Group’s interest in its associates, which is unlisted, REBERFELTHE AT 2 ERN
is as follows: D
Registered and  Country of (Loss)/ % Interest
Name paid up capital incorporation Assets Liabilities Revenues profit held
(B8 FEEs
8 IMERBERE TMRLBEH EE & I 2 i A Bok
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TET FTAET TEL  TEx
Fortune Champ US$150  British Virgins Islands 18,253 19,314 - (1,062) 20
Group Limited
kEEEERRA 150%7m HRBRELES
WRBEERE US$12,375,000  People’s Republic 123,334 7,173 119,852 5,198 40
NEERRA of China
(ShanDong WeiQiao 12,375,000 7T HEARLNE
HengFu Textile Limited)
FINANCIAL ASSETS 23 EMEE
2007 2006
—EELFE —ZTEREFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FET
Beginning of the year F 4 9,184 15,636
Additions NE 15,610 -
Disposals & (6,168) (7,336)
Fair value gains on derivative MTEEMITAZ
financial instruments (Note 6) A ERE (KEEe) 130 356
Net fair value gains on BAnBEf ABRERZ
financial assets at fair value TRMEEAAENEFE
through profit or loss (Note 6) (Pff5E6) 3,436 -
Fair value gains on me#msz
available-for-sale AHEEEEAREBERE
financial assets charged (Bt 5E33)
to equity (Note 33) 22 528
End of the year FR 22,214 9,184
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23 FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

Financial assets include the following:

23 amMEE (K)
CRMAEREUTSE:

Ik EE

2007 2006
—BEEEE —ZTTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTER FAT
Available-for-sale financial assets Tt HE&E v € MEE
Listed equity securities FRRARES - 734
Financial assets at fair value #®2AAREFTABRZERZ
through profit or loss TREE
Market linked instruments BUIBKE M HBT AR
with initial investments 12,507 -
Foreign currency linked HLONEE B 8 2 A5 RS 1 2R
structured note 9,314 8,294
Listed equity securities FRRAES 107 -
Derivative financial instrument T4 €@ T A
Foreign forward exchange R HSNE S 4
contracts 286 156
22,214 9,184
Less: non-current portion BWIERBHD
Listed equity securities TR S = (734
Foreign currency linked HAONEE B8 2 A5 R IR
structured note (9,314) (8,294
(9.314) (9,028
Current portion & o 12,900 156
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B 7% R R MY &

23 FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued) 23 £eWMEE ()
Financial assets are denominated in the following CRMEETATYEKYIME:
currencies:

2007 2006
—BBLE —TTAA
HK$’000 HK$'000

TER FAET
United States dollar ETT 22,107 8,450
Hong Kong dollar BT 107 734
22,214 9,184
24 AMOUNTS DUE FROM SUBSIDIARIES 24 MBATIRFH
The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, MBARIARAEER R2EER
interest-free and repayable on demand. ERBFEERE-
25 INVENTORIES 25 R
2007 2006
—EELE —ZTTRF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FET
Raw materials JR A % 40,692 71,109
Work in progress F 2K 33,711 54,715
Finished goods BURK fh 12,540 31,277
86,943 157,101
The cost of inventories recognised as expenses BRARAXRIFTAREEMmAAZ
and included in cost of goods sold amounted FEMKA%)526,581,0008 ¢ (=&
to approximately HK$526,581,000 (2006: T NF 642,122,000 7T) ©

HK$642,122,000).
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B mRME
26 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 26 BZREMEBEYKHRIE
Group Company
AEHE v NN
2007 2006 2007 2006
—EELFE —TEREFE ZBELE —ZERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FET TERT FETT
Trade receivables B 5 W FIE 108,030 106,266 — -
Prepayments, deposits BRNRIE Re Rk
and other receivables H {th jE 3k IE 30,758 32,003 1,119 1,049
138,788 138,269 1,119 1,049

The carrying amounts of the trade receivables
approximate their fair values.

The majority of the Group’s sales to customers are on
open account basis, with credit terms ranging from 30
to 45 days. The remaining sales are on letter of credit
at sight to 90 days. The ageing analysis of trade
receivables is as follows:

BZRUFALEEEREAARE
-

REBKRBHBE FRE ZHEEY
Ntk AT MEEBAN T
30E45H A THERBUNEE
ORERAMRNR-BESHEWMRIEZ
R DT T:

Group

rEHE
2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FET
Within 30 days 30H A 79,204 96,895
31-60 days 31—60H 27,415 9,191
61-90 days 61—90H 261 72
Over 90 days #B3B90H 1,150 108
108,030 106,266

As at 31st December, 2007, the trade receivables from
the Group's five largest customers accounted for 81%
(2006: 88%) of the total trade receivables. The Group’s
approach to managing credit risk is disclosed in Note 3.

RZEZ+F+_A=+—H K
SELAEPZE SRERWFHIER
B o RINHIBBEES % (ZEE R
F:88%) AEEERBEERRZ
AR IR

BEZRBRAR o 2007 FE5HS
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1 % 3R 2= MY EE

26 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 26
(Continued)

Ageing analysis of trade receivables past due but not
impaired is as follows:

BHRHEMBWKHRIE (&)

B 78 38 R (B 2 & 5 B WK TR R
g AT

Group

rEH
2007 2006
—EELE —_ZTTRHF
HKS$'000  HK$'000
THER FET
Within 30 days 30H A 8,613 9,019
31-60 days 31—60H 50 72
61-90 days 61—90H 168 45
Over 90 days #B:B90H 962 63
9,793 9,199

At 31st December, 2007, there were no provisions for
impairment of trade receivables (2006: Nil).

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting
date is the fair value of each class of receivables
mentioned above. The Group does not hold any
collateral as security.
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26 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 26

27

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
% 3R 2= MY aE

ESRHEMEBUYFHRIE (E)
(Continued)

BZRYKAZREEIIATIE

The carrying amounts of the trade receivables were

denominated in the following currencies: "I ME
Group
rEH
2007 2006
HK$'000  HKS$'000
FTERT FHETT
United States dollar ETT 105,641 106,266
Hong Kong dollar 7T 595 -
Renminbi AR 1,794 -
108,030 106,266
DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 27 fTE€MIA
2007 2006
—EELF —ZTITRF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERT FAT
Beginning of the year F 4 - -
Fair value losses charged to MBBmEZ ARBEEE
profit and loss (Note 6) (Mt3Ee) 12,617 -
End of the year FR 12,617 -
Derivative financial instruments comprise the followings: MTEeMmTABETI®E:
2007 2006
—EELF —TITRF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTER FAT
Equity accumulators HmEBEILA 11,525 -
Market linked instrument HREE-CE7 v
with swap arrangement mEHET A 1,092 -
12,617 -
BEZERBERAAF o 2007 FERE
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B 7 R 2% B &
28 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 28 BleRBE&FEER
Group Company
rEE ¥ YN
2007 2006 2007 2006
ZBRLFE —TTREF ZBELE —TTRHF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER TAET THER FAT
Cash at bank and in hand R1T R FHEEA S 41,727 58,487 166 145
Short-term bank deposits %2 Hi$R 1717 7 68,225 32,966 - -
109,952 91,453 166 145

The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits
was 3.5% (2006: 4.9%) per annum where these deposits
have an average maturity of 3 days (2006: 1 day).

The carrying amount of the cash and cash equivalents
were denominated in the following currencies:

RHRTTERCERFEMNER35E
(ZZETRF:498)  HFHEH
BR3E (ZZETXREFE:18) -

ReMRELFEEE ZKREETIA
THEEHIE:

Group Company
r5E PN

2007 2006 2007 2006
“BRLFE —TTREF ZBELE —TTRHF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FET THER FET
Hong Kong dollar 7T 18,197 1,903 166 145
United States dollar ETT 71,781 64,530 - -
Indonesian rupiah & 17,424 19,680 - -
Renminbi AR 2,235 5,217 - -
Others H At 315 123 - -
109,952 91,453 166 145
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B 7% R R Y &
29 BANK BORROWINGS 29 MITER
2007 2006
—EELE —TETRX
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Non-current FERE
Bank borrowings RITE N
— secured (Note (b)) — B (5E(b)) 1,938 9,750
— unsecured — fE 1K 7 31,367 15,500
33,305 25,250
Current b
Bank borrowings (Note (a)) RITE K (M 5E(a))
- secured (Note (b)) — B EM (M 5E (b)) 24,238 28,772
— unsecured — 48,535 39,633
72,773 68,405
Total borrowings BE R 106,078 93,655
The Group’s borrowings were repayable as follows: REEZERZERBHMT:
2007 2006
—EELE —TTNRF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTER FAT
Within 1 year —F K 72,773 68,405
Between 1 and 2 years —EMFA 12,916 15,550
Between 2 and 5 years “ERFA 20,389 9,700
106,078 93,655
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1 % 3R 2= MY EE

29 BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

29 |ITEHX (M)

Notes: M 5
(a)  Bank borrowings wholly repayable within one year included (@) ZER—FRNBZBEBZBITERBIE
secured trust receipts loans of approximately HK$16,488,000 BEBETRIEEF X 16,488,000
(2006: HK$20,972,000) and unsecured trust receipts loans of T (ZZFZENF:20,972,000%8 L) &
approximately HK$42,723,000 (2006: HK$39,633,000). R RSB B 2 4042,723,000%8
T (ZZEZE X4 :39,633,00087T) °
(b)  Investment properties of the Group with an aggregate carrying (b) AEBREMES £428,300,000% 7T
value of approximately HK$28,300,000 (2006: HK$22,300,000) (=TT x4 22,300,000 78 ) 7 &
have been pledged as security for the secured bank borrowings. BMECRKIFEAREREBITERZ
IR G o
() The bank borrowings bear interest rates ranging from 6.8% to (0 WITBERFP UAETREMLERFF
7.2% per annum for United States dollar denominated bank K BEZET2EFHE (ZEZTRF F
borrowings (2006: 6.0% to 7.1% per annum) and 5.4% to FIEEOEZRTNE) B TAEMNE
6.2% per annum for Hong Kong dollar denominated bank AR EN RS ABE62EFE (ZTT
borrowings (2006: 5.8% to 5.9% per annum). NEFEFER RS QEFE59E)
The carrying amounts of bank borrowings approximate RITERZEEERE AR EME
their fair values. 5o
The carrying amounts of the bank borrowings were RITERZEEETATIEES
denominated in the following currencies: &:
2007 2006
—EELFE —ZTERF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FAT
Hong Kong dollar 7T 18,948 8,018
United States dollar ETT 87,130 85,637
106,078 93,655
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B 7% R R Y &
30 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 30 iEEFRFR

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when EBETAMITRAGRANEER
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax ERRAEMBAGHRE BRELTMH
assets against current tax liabilities and when the SHIE Y KR — B B B8 - B AT A%
deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal authority. BB HBEEERBERIE P

The offset amounts are as follows: Bz 2EWT:
2007 2006

—BBLE —TTAA
HK$’000 HK$'000

THER FAET
Deferred income tax assets BEMEHEE 2,868 4,279
Deferred income tax liabilities BEFMSHERE (7,384) (4,771)
(4,516) (492)
Hong Kong deferred income tax is calculated in full on ERARLEMMEHEDREEE K
temporary differences under the liability method using AEEHE175% (T NF:
a principal taxation rate of 17.5% (2006: 17.5%). 17.5%) shEGRF ZRE1E L 2 U H -
Deferred income tax of overseas subsidiaries are BN B A E I BEMBHIE TR
calculated at the rates of taxation prevailing in the REBEKEEBAEBRR 2BITH
countries in which the Group operates. &
The movements on the deferred income tax account BEXEMESHERE 2 Z8m T
are as follows:
2007 2006
—EELE —TIETRX
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FET
Beginning of the year F 4 (492) 181
Deferred income tax R AFRE (F0BR) FTAZ
(charged)/credited to EIEFTIF L (FYsE10)
income statement (Note 10) (3.817) 781
Deferred income tax RiEm PR ZEEREH
charged to equity (146) (1,559)
Exchange differences MEHER (61) 105
End of the year FR (4,516) (492)
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1 % 3R 2= MY EE

30 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 30 EEFRSIR ()
Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss BRIEMEHEEEZSN BB IMIEA
carry forwards to the extent that realisation of the F 22 B 7] B i iR R 2R 8 AR B m A1 &
related tax benefit through the future taxable profits is BRMEEHEEERER- RN _F
probable. As at 31 December, 2007, the Group has THtFT+ZA=T—HB AIfHEARE
unrecognised cumulative tax losses of approximately EAEANKERRBRERRBAZ
HK$20,359,000 (2006: HK$19,657,000) to carry forward AERBEBAREBEBEND S
against future taxable income. Cumulative tax losses of 20,359,000 ot ( Z T ZT X F :
approximately HK$4,915,000 (2006: HK$19,657,000) 19,657,000/ 7T) - RET T IEE B L
can be carried forward indefinitely while tax losses of 4,915,000 0 (Z & ZT X F:
approximately HK$15,444,000 (2006: Nil) will expire in 19,657,000/ 7T ) Al MR HA 4565 -
five years. Fi T8 B518 49 15,444,000 L (- &
TRE E)BRAFRIE-
The movements in deferred income tax assets and FAZBREMSMEERAGES
liabilities (prior to offsetting of balances within the same (REERE — IR B 2 A 8RAT)
taxation jurisdiction) during the year are as follows: AN
Deferred income tax assets BEFMRMEE
Provision
for post-  Decelerated
employment tax
Tax losses benefits depreciation Total
BE&R
MR %2
hEER BARE RERERE Hat
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FHT FHT
At 1st January, 2006 R-ZEERF—F—H 546 - 1,316 1,862
(Charged)/credited to NN el
income statement (10B) /A (583) 2,929 (168) 2,178
Exchange differences X =R 37 121 81 239
At 31st December, 2006 RZZEERF+-_A=1+—H - 3,050 1,229 4,279
At 1st January, 2007 RZEE+F—-A—H - 3,050 1,229 4,279
Charged to R A&+ Mk
income statement - (452) (833) (1,285)
Exchange differences EHZHE - (115) (11) (126)
At 31st December, 2007 R-ZZTLF+-_A=t—H - 2,483 385 2,868
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B 7 % 2% B =
30 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 30 EIEFRFR ()
Deferred income tax liabilities BREFMBRAR
Fair value
gains of Withholding
buildings tax for
and  Accelerated undistributed
investment tax retained
properties  depreciation earnings Total
BFR 2K
RENEZ 2% RERFZ
AfERE BHEfE BHHE @
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FTET TET TET
At 1st January, 2006 RZZEX F—A—H 711 970 - 1,681
Charged to income statement RIABRE+ Mk 401 996 - 1,397
Charged to equity PR & A BR 1,559 - - 1,559
Exchange differences ER - 134 - 134
At 31st December, 2006 RZZEERF+-A=1—H 2,671 2,100 - 4,771
At 1st January, 2007 RZZET+F—-H—H 2,671 2,100 - 4,711
Charged/(credited) to NN E
income statement mne/ (Gt A) 1,094 (289) 1,727 2,532
Charged to equity RERMGK 146 - - 146
Exchange differences EHZRE - (65) = (65)
At 31st December, 2007 RZEE+F+-_A=1+—H 3,911 1,746 1,727 7,384
31 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 31 BHREMEFMRIE
Group Company
AEE PN
2007 2006 2007 2006
ZETLF —TTAF ZBRLF STIAF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT THET FAT
Trade payables 2 S EMNRIE 74,078 109,334 - -
Other payables H th & 1 518
and accruals REFtERA 54,255 62,028 4,466 6,182
128,333 171,362 4,466 6,182
BEEZERBERAF o 2007 FE@E

139



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 % 3R 2= MY EE

31 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
(Continued)

31 WHRHEMMEFHRIF (&)

BHRNFRBEZREDONMT:

The ageing analysis of the trade payables is as follows:

Group

rEE
2007 2006
—EBLFE —ZTTRE
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FHET
Within 30 days 30H A 56,783 72,737
31-60 days 31—60H 5,855 25,863
61-90 days 61—90H 5,647 2,758
Over 90 days #B3B90H 5,793 7,976
74,078 109,334
Trade and other payables approximate their fair values. B REMEMNRIBEALR R EMHE

Trade and other payables were denominated in the
following currencies:

o

o

B NAMENFBATATIER

SI{E -

2007 2006

—EBELE —TTF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Hong Kong dollar ETT 50,007 53,341
United States dollar BT 18,923 49,741
Indonesia Rupiah HERE 2,840 6,252
Renminbi AR 2,308 -
74,078 109,334
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B 7 R 3R B &
32 SHARE CAPITAL 32 &
2007 2007 2006 2006
—EELE ZBELXE —ZERF —ZERF
Number of  Ordinary Number of Ordinary
Shares shares Shares shares
RHEE AR M e B TR
(thousands) HK$'000 (thousands) HK$'000
(FR) FTER (F8) FET
At 1st January R—H—H 361,054 36,105 360,034 36,003
Employee share & BRI &
option scheme
— new shares issued — BTG, 6,720 672 1,020 102
At 31st December R+=-—A=+—H 367,774 36,777 361,054 36,105

The total authorised number of ordinary shares is
2,000,000,000 (2006: 2,000,000,000) shares with a par
value of HK$0.10 per share (2006: HK$0.10 per share).

Share option scheme adopted on 8th May, 2002
(the “Scheme”)

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on
8th May, 2002, the Scheme was approved and adopted.

Under the Scheme, the directors of the Company are
authorised to grant options to qualifying participants of
the Company or its subsidiaries to subscribe for shares
in the Company at prices in accordance with the terms
of the Scheme. The total number of shares available for
issue under the Scheme is 19,360,000 which is 5.26%
of the issued share capital of the Company as at 31st
December, 2007.

Under the terms of the Scheme, the directors of the
Company granted options to certain qualifying
participants on 25th October, 2005 to subscribe for a
total of 17,160,000 shares in the Company at a price
of HK$0.536 per share. As at 31st December, 2007,
there were 8,900,000 (2006: 15,620,000) share options
outstanding which are exercisable from 1st November,
2005 to 31st October, 2008.

JATE & BA% 4820 &2,000,000,0000%
(ZZZ /X% :2,000,000,0004%) -
BRAEECI10B T (ZETRF:
M EEO0.108T) °

R-ZE_FHEA/NBHMAZH
BefEat® ([exat@])

TTZK Thiﬂiﬁ’gtﬁt/ﬁ&
R o

BIEZTE KRR EETEREDY
BYAQABIHEMBAR A EK
SEEBERE LM;E”;ZJ%M%%
%E)EZFTDWL,Eﬁz'K TZHXT]]
FrEp R 2 A HBITROEE 6%
19,360,000 "I AR ARIR T F
tFE+A=T—HZEEITRA
25.26% °

R_ZETERF+A-_+HB EAA
Ti%*ﬁﬂf«%ﬁﬂZf%?ﬁ&%%ﬂF
HERSEENIZREMR0.536/EF T
ZERRBIEA £17,160,0000% % 17
CERE-R-_TTLF+=A=
+—H-8,900,0001% (= ZZ /X
15,620,000 ) AR T HF +
—A—BEZTZENF+A=+—
BTz BRERARITE
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B 7 R 2% B &
32 SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 32 B®Fx (48)
Share option scheme adopted on 8th May, 2002 R-ESES"_FHAANBBRMZH
(the “Scheme”) (Continued) BRigst® ([Zet®]) (&)
Movements in the number of options outstanding under EZAE THRITE 2 BRESE
the Scheme during the year and their related weighted RERNZEE RIEEZEBmE
average exercise prices are as follows: FHTEBHNT
2007 2006
—E2ELF —ETERF
Average Average
exercise exercise
price price
FHITEE FHITEE
HKS$ per Number of HK$ per Number of
share options share options

BRET BREHE Skttt BRESKEA

At 1st January Rn—H—H 0.536 15,620,000 0.536 17,160,000

Exercised [=ESRES 0.536 (6,720,000) 0.536 (1,020,000)

Lapsed B R - - 0.536 (520,000)

At 31st December WR+—A=+—8H 8,900,000 15,620,000

Share options outstanding as at 31st December, 2007 Rzt TR ZETLFT+A=

under the Scheme have the following terms: T—HERITE 2 BIRE 2 ERH

HIEAT

Exercise Number of

price options

THEE BREZE

HK$ 2007

Expiry date fE w B 5 BT Z—EBELHF

Directors ==

31st October, 2008 —EENEFE+H=+—H 0.536 7,700,000
Continuous contract employees FESHWEE

31st October, 2008 —EENF+A=1T—H 0.536 1,200,000

8,900,000
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5 7% 2% Bt

33 OTHER RESERVES 33 H il &

Group
r5E
Share-based  Available-
Exchange Fixed assets Merger ~ compen-  for-sale

Share translation revaluation Reserve sation investments
premium reserve reserve  (Note (i) reserve reserve Total
U4

BEEE AHRE XHEE THEE
ROEE EXRE EARE  (WE0)) MNeRE RERG @t
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
THAL TEL THAL TER TAL TER TAL

At 1st January, 2006 R-EEx F-F—H 36,889 (19,908) 17,804 (200) 2,200 (455) 36,330
Exchange differences arising BEBNHBAAR

on the translation of BeRANBEREL

the financial statements of LERESR

overseas subsidiaries and associates - 10,281 - - - - 10,281
Fair value changes, net of deferred tax DREES NREERE - - (1,021) - - - (1,021)
Employee share options scheme: EEBRESE:

— exercised share options — TR ERE 551 - - - (106) - 445

— lapsed share options —BREXR - - - - (54) - (54)
Surplus on revaluation of EfAHLEEZ SR

available-for-sale financial assets EERH - - - - - 528 528
Disposal of available-for-sale HETHREEZeRERE

financial assets - - - - - 297 297
Transfer of reserve EET - - (13,146) - - - (13,146)
At 31st December, 2006 R-EERE+-A=t—H 37,440 (9,627) 3,637 (200) 2,040 370 33,660

I S N BN S N

At 1st January, 2007 R-ZZ5+F-F—-H 37,440 (9,627) 3,637 (200) 2,040 370 33,660
Exchange differences arising BERIMBARR

on the translation of BELRNBRRESE

the financial statements of LERER

overseas subsidiaries and associates - 1,247 - - - - 1,247
Fair value changes, net of deferred tax MAEEE MRETHE - - 340 - - - 340
Employee share options scheme: EERREE:

— exercised share options -TPERE 3,714 - - - (785) - 2,929
Surplus on revaluation of EfAHNEL

available-for-sale financial assets CRHEERY - - - - - 22 2
Disposal of available-for-sale HETHREEZeRERE

financial assets - - - - - (392) (392)
At 31st December, 2007 RZZZLF+-A=1-H 41,154 (8,380) 3,977 (200) 1,255 - 37,806
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1 % 3R 2= MY EE

33 OTHER RESERVES (Continued)

33 Hfthfkfm (&)

Notes:

0]

(if)

The merger reserve of the Group represents the difference
between the nominal value of the shares of a subsidiary
acquired and the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued
in exchange thereof.

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the
difference between the consolidated shareholders’ funds of
the subsidiary acquired and the nominal value of the Company’s
shares issued in exchange thereof.
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Company
b /N
Share-
based
Contributed  compen-
Share Surplus sation
premium (Note (ii)) reserve Total
LU 3
AR XES
ROEE (HEG) MeERE 48 5t
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FET FTAET FAET FAET
At 1st January, 2006 RZZETRF—H—H 36,889 165,739 2,200 204,828
Employee share option scheme: (& 8 B ik i 5t 21 -
— exercised of share options ~ — 77 {& & i 42 551 - (106) 445
— lapsed of share options —BRELN - - (54) (54)
2006 final dividend paid —EERFENKREIRE - (18,045) - (18,045)
At 31st December, 2006 R-_ZETRF
+-A=+—H 37,440 147,694 2,040 187,174
At 1st January, 2007 RZZEERF—HF—H 37,440 147,694 2,040 187,174
Employee share option scheme: & 8 B fx 5t &
— exercised of share options ~ — 171 B8 fR 42 3,714 - (785) 2,929
At 31st December, 2007 RZETLF
+=-A=+—H 147,694 1,255 190,103

B

(i AEEZEHREIEBAZ —HH
BRARKROEERARNRRBEZBAT
BITRMZEEZZR-

(i) ARBZBARBRTIBWEZMELQ
Az RESBARTMBIERR
METRMZEELZZR-



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
% 3R 2= MY aE

34 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH
FLOW STATEMENT

(a) Reconciliation of profit before income tax to

net cash inflow from operations is as follows:

34 RERENBRME

MRASRMAFREETH
BakARBHZzHIE

2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FAT
Profit before income tax B P15 150 A i A 81,308 87,451
Depreciation of properties, % -BW&ENMRETE
plant and equipment 17,414 15,493
Gain on disposal of HEME WERZH 2 W=
properties, plant and
equipment (1,576) (278)
Provision for impairment of /5 &% & & # 25 B (B B &
plant and machinery 8,261 -
Amortisation of leasehold 8 & £ #b & £ Hb {F F3 & 2 # 8
land and land use rights 766 862
Share of profit of associates %1 B & 2 &) 4 (1,738) (4,839)
Gain on disposal of HE—FEERrz s
an associate (72)
Fair value gains on KEWMELAAEZ NS
investment properties (6,000) -
Net fair value losses/(gains) T4 &R T E Y
on derivative financial AREZER/
instruments (Mg ) F88 12,487 (356)
Fair value gains on financial QA BT ABERE
assets at fair value ZEMEER R EWE
through profit or loss (3.436) -
Fair value (gains)/losses HERAHEEZ
realised on disposals of TREEL
available-for-sale EERANE
financial assets (Wz) B8 (392) 300
Finance income BE WA (6,730) (3,281)
Finance costs Bl & AL AR 6,637 5,988
106,929 101,340
Changes in working capital: Z£E& &2 #):
Inventories FE 70,158 8,535
Trade and other receivables & 5 K H b & Ug 7% (519) (23,752)
Trade and other payables B 5 K& H b FE T K (46,883) 22,158
Net cash inflow reEFEGHRERAFE
from operations 129,685 108,281
BEZERBERAAF o 2007 FERE
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34 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH 34
FLOW STATEMENT (Continued)

(b) Analysis of changes in financing during the

EeRaRER

P &E (¥8)

(b) FAMBEESH

year
Share capital and
share premium Bank borrowings Minority interests
BRARRGEE RITEX SURRER
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
“EZtE ZTTREF ZBELE -TTRF ZZBLE ZTITRF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET TER AT TER FTER
At 1st January R—A—H 73,545 72,892 93,655 101,637 2,594 1,704
Issuance of shares upon RITEE BB MR
exercise of employee B ETRR G
share options 4,386 653 - - - -
Bank borrowings raised HRBTER - - 413,195 432,563 = -
Bank borrowings repaid ERBRTER - - (400,772)  (440,545) - -
Minority interests’ share of LERREM
profits and reserves B R EE - - - - 4,575 622
Exchange differences EXERE - - - - 1,078 268
At 31st December R+=-A=+—-H 77,931 73,545 106,078 93,655 8,247 2,594
I I I I I I
35 COMMITMENTS 35 #&iE
Capital commitments &%

Capital expenditure at the balance sheet date but not

REEREDREE ZEARFN

yet incurred is as follows: Ik
2007 2006
—EELFE —ZTETRF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FAT
Leasehold land and land TE Tt R L A
use right, properties, I ER NS
plant and equipment
Contracted but not B R 4B R BE
provided for 2,880 23,743
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35 COMMITMENTS (Continued) 35 #*iE (#§)

Commitments under operating leases BEHAERE

36

The Group had future aggregate minimum lease
payments for land and buildings under non-cancellable

Ik EE

AEBRBETAIHHEECEHEE MR
RARRR L RBF N2 &HEHE

operating leases as follows: TR
2007 2006
—EELFE —ZTTRF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THER FHETT
Not later than one year —FR 5,302 8,699
Later than one year and —FHBTEREF
not later than five years 11,226 3,300
Later than five years hF& 6,091 4,154
22,619 16,153
SUBSIDIARIES 36 MEBAT
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at RARABIR_EZLF+_A="1—
31st December, 2007: AZEXEMBARIFINET:
Place of
incorporation/ Particulars
Place of Principal of issued Percentage of
Company name operation activities share capital interest held
R R 217 s
YNGR K i B FEXK R4 & R B
Shares held directly:
EEHAERG:
Topwell Group British Virgin Investment 1,000 ordinary 100
Development Ltd. Islands holding shares of
US$1 each
REBRUEES REER 1,0000% & %
HE1ETZ
%

BERERBEBRDA o 2007 FEHE
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36 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

36 BT ()

Place of
incorporation/ Particulars
Place of Principal of issued Percentage of
Company name operation activities share capital interest held
R oA S5 &6) PR
NEER A i B FEXK A& ¥ BOL
Shares held indirectly:
BEEERMG:
Best Sphere Group Limited British Virgin Investment 1 ordinary 100
Islands holding share of US$1
RBRUES REZER TREEIETZ
ERR
Bright Horizons British Virgin Investment 1 ordinary 100
Investments Limited Islands holding share of US$1
KBRS KEERKR TREEIETZ
Carry Wealth Limited Hong Kong Garment trading, 4,000,000 ordinary 100
marketing and shares of
provision of HK$1 each
management
services
TR BR A A ) KIRE Z 5 4,000,0008 & ik
HE LM HE1BTZ
BIE R R
Carry Wealth (South Africa) British Virgin Investment 1 ordinary 100
Investment Limited Islands holding share of US$1
KBRS KEERKR TREEIETZ
Charter Row Group British Virgin Investment 1 ordinary 100
Limited Islands holding share of US$1
RBRUES REZERK TREEIETZ
ERR
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36 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
% 3R 2= MY aE

36 MEBLT ()

Place of
incorporation/ Particulars
Place of Principal of issued Percentage of
Company name operation activities share capital interest held
R oA 21T PR
NEER A i B FEXK A& ¥ BOL
Charter, S.A. de C.V. El Salvador Manufacture of 200 shares of 100
knit tops US$114.28 each
&R L% EESTE XK 200k & ik B
114.28% 7T 2 & 1n
Easy Victory British Virgin Investment 1 ordinary 100
Investments Limited Islands holding share of US$1
RBRUES REZERK TREEIETZ
%
Gold Clipper Trading British Virgin Investment 1 ordinary 100
Limited Islands holding share of US$1
RBRUES REEK TREEIETZ
Hillwealth International Hong Kong Investment 1 ordinary 100
Limited holding share of HK$1
Eom BERE AR AR HE KREERK TREE1ETZ
Mass Wealth Investments  Hong Kong Investment 1 ordinary 100
Limited holding share of HK$1
mERZERR QA B KEERKR TREEBE1IETZ
ERR
Mutual Grace Investments Hong Kong Investment 1 ordinary 100
Limited holding share of HK$1
B ERR QA BA TEER TREEIETZ
ERR
BEZERBERAAF o 2007 FERE
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Ik E e

36 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

36 MEBLT ()

Place of
incorporation/ Particulars
Place of Principal of issued Percentage of
Company name operation activities share capital interest held
ML, S5 &6) PR
NEER A i B FEXK A& ¥ BOL
Promaster Company Hong Kong Property 2 ordinary 100
Limited holding shares of
HK$1 each
REEERAF e REME 2 AR EE
1Bz &R
PT Caterindo Indonesia Manufacture of 15,000 ordinary 95
Garment Industri knit tops shares of
Rp1 million each
Elfe EESHEEX 15000 EREE
—a8HERZ
Shinning Century Limited  Hong Kong/ Manufacture of 1,000,000 ordinary 70
Lesotho knit tops shares of
HK$1 each
REERA A BE/RRE HEESHE X 1,000,0000% & 8
EE1BTZ
=B
Sino Precision Limited British Virgin Investment 1,000 ordinary 66.7
Islands holding shares of
US$1 each
REBRLES BREZER 1,000/ % A [ &
1ETzERK
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36 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
% 3R 2= MY aE

36 MEBLT ()

Place of
incorporation/ Particulars
Place of Principal of issued Percentage of
Company name operation activities share capital interest held
R oA 21T PR
NEER R i B FEXK A& ¥ BOL
Supreme Bright Group Hong Kong Provision of 2 ordinary 100
Limited garment shares of
agency HK$1 each
services
BEXEERRAF N R K g REE
I AR 7% VBT 2 &R
Times King Limited British Virgin Investment 1 ordinary 100
Islands holding share of US$1
RBRUES REZERK TREEIETZ
EREL
Topwell Investments Ltd. British Virgin Investment 1 ordinary 100
Islands holding share of US$1
RBRUES REZERK TREEIETZ
BLEERHKXKERRAA PRC wholly Manufacture US$6,300,000 100
(Heshan Carry Wealth foreign owned and sale of
Garment Limited) enterprise knit products
hEEE HEEMIEE 6,300,000% 7T
RERE B 48 R 2=
BEZERBERAAF o 2007 FERE
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B 7 R 2% B &
37 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 37 REFXH
As at 31st December, 2007, 169,062,000 shares R_ZEELF+_A=+—H0'&
(45.96%) of the Company were held by Respected A F1169,062,000/% f% 19 (45.96%)
International Limited, which was ultimately owned as 3 Respected International Limited#F
to 46.03% and 46.03% by Mr Rusli Hendrawan and A ' Rusli Hendrawan 4t 4 B2 2= 5 3¢
Mr Lee Sheng Kuang, James, directors of the Company, EESRBRBRESBZ22ERE
respectively through their respective wholly-owned RARBRHEEZ A 246.03% K
companies. 46.03%-°
Key management compensation FTEEREAANS
2007 2006
—EELE —TITRF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FAT
Salaries and other short-term Bk EME S EERA
employee benefits 13,646 15,020
Contributions to the MPF Scheme & il 14 A 78 & 51 I 4 ; 317 335
13,963 15,355
38 EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET 38 HB&%=ER

DATE

On 3rd March, 2008, the Group entered into a binding
provisional agreement with a third party purchaser for
the disposal of its investment properties at a
consideration of HK$35,600,000. The estimated disposal
gain is approximately HK$6,900,000 after netting off
with the necessary selling and legal expenses. The
expected completion date of the disposal will be on or
before 28th July, 2008.
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CARRY WEALTH HOLDINGS LIMITED

EEERARAT

2701, 27th Floor, One Kowloon, 1 Wang Yuen Street, Kowloon Bay, Hong Kong
BRNEEREMF [—HNE] 27827101F

Tel £5%:(852) 23108180  Fax f8H : (852) 2310 8797

Website #831t : www.carrywealth.com
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